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CORPORATE POLICY

VISION:

» To be the most preferred Microfinance and SME- oriented Rural Bank across

Luzon.

MISSION:

» To be the catalyst in the microfinance and SME sectors by assisting our
customers in their creation of wealth through our efficient services and
innovative financial products and dedicated team of competent and highly

motivated professionals.

» To tap depositors who share the vision of developing Microfinance and SME
entrepreneurs in the country.
» To maintain the highest ethical standards, sense of responsibility, and fairness
to our stakeholders and the community we serve.
b. Introduction of the Bank’s brand that differentiates it from other Banks.
> In keeping with the Bank’s new name — Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (A Rural Bank)
Inc., we continue to offer products that fit the financing needs of different
target market/client-profile: Flexibility in meeting our target clients’ financing
needs. These are micro-finance, Micro-Plus, Micro+S, and SME loans.
C. Business model of the Bank

» For the Bank’s funding, the Bank obtains deposits from high net-worth and
bona fide individuals and lend these funds to Micro and SME borrowers. The
benchmark for this model is Indonesia’s highly successful BTPN Bank.

Financial Summary / Financial Highlights

Consolidated

Parent Bank (SOLO)

Minimum Required Data | Current Year | Previous Year 2022 2021
Profitability
Total Net Interest Income 33,618,798 30,046,715
Total Non-Interest Income 11,135,614 7,360,885
Total Non-Interest Expenses 41,465,224 37,595,134
Pre-provision profit
Allowance for credit losses 13,169,569 8,060,374
Net Income 3,374,345 1,177,629
Selected Balance Sheet Data
Liquid Assets
Gross Loans 174,591,287 154,815,091

Total Assets

246,057,929

241,997,768

Deposits 145,841,647 149,246,510
Total Equity 79,353,058 76,192,868
Selected Ratios

Return on Equity 4.41% 1.58%
Return on Assets 1.30% 0.60%

CET 1 capital ratio (for
UBs/KBs)

Tier 1 capital ratio (for
UBs/KBs)




Capital Adequacy Ratio

29.05 28.28

Banks)

Per common share data (For
UBs, KBs and publicly listed

Net Income per share:

Basic

Diluted

Book value

Others

Cash dividends declared

Headcount

49 50

Officers

5 5

Staff

44 45

As of 30 September 2022, the Bank has a total loan volume of #188 million or 74.31% of our 2022
target. In our effort to more actively expand our Micro and SME products and with the opening of the
economy post COVID-19 restrictions, the Bank has recently reorganized its Sales teams. The move
aims to maximize output in terms of account portfolio and income generation and is based on the
level of capability, expertise, and portfolio performance of each account officer and team lead (vis-a-
vis the Bank’s loan products). The Bank employs the following strategies:

1)

2)

5)

The Loans & Business Development Department has actively expanded its Micro and
SME products while continuing to market Micro finance and Micro Loan products.

We grant loans that are largely based on Cash flow and preferably collateralized by real
estate mortgage (REM) or chattel and refrain from accepting inventories and personal
assets as collaterals.

The Management has been vigilantly monitoring loan releases to ensure that proceeds
are used for their intended purposes.

The major changes in the Loans and Business Development structures are:

4.1 We have re-organized the Loans and Business Development teams
into clusters - combining the manpower from existing teams and regrouping
them into specialized two units per group - Micro Loan unit and Micro+S/SME
unit. The Micro Loan units are manned by Account Officers (AOs) with vast and
tested expertise/experience in microfinance account generation and
management while the Micro+S/SME units are composed of AOs whose
expertise lie on big-ticket products.

4.2 The Bank’s ALCO (Management team) closely monitors the collection

targets to ensure that portfolio level and quality are maintained at all times.
Furthermore, the Bank’s Collection unit has been “revitalized” by having it
directly supervised by the President, with the assistance of the Loans and
Business Development Head. This is in order for the unit to have more focus on
collecting accounts that fall under delinquency status even before they reach
past due status. The aim is to apply airtight collection efforts to avoid accounts
turning past due and reverting to current status accounts that have been
declared past due. This set up is closely monitored by the Compliance Unit to
ensure that ‘checks and balances’ is in place at all times.

We will adopt digital payment channels starting with reputable platforms to help
increase collections and provide clients alternative and convenient ways to pay off their
loans. This includes implementing a Unified QR code system.




6) The Heads of Loans and Business Development and Liability Insurance, in collaboration
with the Bank’s Human Resources Management Dept (HRMD)., have put in place
appropriate training sessions and coaching program that are timely given to Account
Officers (AOs) and Team Leaders (TLs) (i.e., handling accounts — from tapping potential
market, identifying suitable prospects, evaluating credit-worthiness of future
borrowers, and doing post-sales review and service).

7)  The Management follows the BSP’s recommendations on the treatment of delinquent
accounts (i.e., past due accounts tagging) to make our loan provisioning realistic.

1. Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (A Rural Bank) Inc. as of as of Increase (Decrease)
Balance Sheet December 312022  December 31 2021
ASSETS
Cash on Hand 2,985,897 2,682,394 303,503

cocl 1,993,751 1,993,751
Cash In Bank 59,901,682 68,073,773 -8,172,091
Loan Receivable 174,591,287 154,815,091 19,776,196

Allowance for doubtful

accounts -14,613,551 -8,589,736 -6,023,814
L/R -Net of Allowance 159,977,736 146,225,355 13,752,381
FFE & IT 1,292,170 1,037,496 254,674
Leasehold Improvement 1,861,262 5,059,421 -3,198,159
Service Vehicles 961,627 1,328,827 -367,200
Software Under Development 1,717,333 1,974,933 -257,600
ROPA 477,816 257,896 219,920
Sales Contract Receivable 3,001,517 2,647,794 353,723
Accounts Receivable 5,427,430 5,283,797 143,632
Prepaid Expenses 371,269 371,873 -604
Other Assets 6,088,440 7,054,209 -965,770
TOTAL ASSETS 246,057,930 241,997,768 4,060,161
LIABILITIES

Savings Deposit 32,154,177 31,720,978 433,199

Time Deposit 113,687,470 117,525,533 -3,838,063
Deposit Liabilities 145,841,647 149,246,510 -3,404,863
Redeemable Preferred Shares 3,478,800 3,478,800 -
Retirement Benefit Obligation 3,751,317 3,167,396 583,921
Loans and Other Account Payables 8,742,765 2,112,593 6,630,172
Other Liabilities 4,890,342 7,799,600 -2,909,258
TOTAL LIABILITIES 166,704,871 165,804,900 899,971
EQUITY
Paid-up Capital 160,082,208 153,556,108 6,526,100
Undivided Profits 3,374,345 1,177,629 2,196,716
Retained Earnings -84,103,495 -78,540,869 -5,562,626
TOTAL EQUITY 79,353,058 76,192,868 3,160,190
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 246,057,930 241,997,768 4,060,161




Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (A Rural Bank) Inc.
Income Statement

for the period of

for the period of

January to December2022 January to December2021

Increase (Decrease)

INCOME
Interest Income- Daily - 57,667 (57,667)
Interest Income - Microfinance 9,554,351 12,124,945 (2,570,593)
Interest Income - Microloan - - -
Interest Income - Microplus SME 14,436,854 11,456,390 2,980,464
Interest Income - SME 12,836,422 9,342,697 3,493,726
Interest Income - Agri and Other Loans 1,976,173 987,490 988,682
Total Income from loans 7 38,803,800 33,969,188 4,834,612
Service Fees - Micro and other loans 4,266,842 4,964,947 (698,105)
Total Income from Service Fees/Processing fees 4,266,842 4,964,947 (698,105)
Gain/Losses - ROPA Sale & SCR 2,090,826 137,850 1,952,976
Recovery on Written-Off Assets 265,865 1,411,743 (1,145,878)
Interest Income from banks 134,971 290,389 (155,418)
Penalties 3,355,675 1,267,511 2,088,165
Miscellaneous Income -
Notarial & Insurance 328,541 716,542 (388,002)
Dormant Accounts 31,031 4,824 26,207
Other Charges 437,332 261,350 175,982
Other Misc Income 730,384 145,712 584,672
Total Other Income 7,374,624 4,235,920 3,138,704
TOTAL GROSS INCOME 50,445,266 43,170,055 7,275,211
EXPENSES
Interest Expense 5,424,989 4,350,712 1,074,277
Compensation & Fringe 19,038,307 18,972,082 66,225
Taxes and Licenses 3,113,274 2,955,066 158,208
Rent 873,892 772,229 101,663
Transportation 1,730,854 1,778,887 (48,034)
Admin and Other Operational Expenses 13,142,504 10,624,248 2,518,256
Representation & Entertainment 76,694 105,997 (29,302)
Provisions for doubtful accounts 3,670,407 2,433,205 1,237,202
TOTAL EXPENSES 47,070,921 41,992,426 5,078,495
Net Income/(loss) 3,374,345 1,177,629 2,196,716
MLR as of December 31, 2022
M! MINIMUM LIQUIDITY RATIO (MLR)
(in PHP, Absolute Amounts)
Item Nature of Item Rfala e Qcount Code Amount
A. Stock of Liquid Assets Part I, Item B 100080000000000000 46,767,332.48
B. Qualifying Liabilities Part Ill, Item D 200080000000000000 164,951,698.49
C. MLR [A divided by B] 990070000000000000 28.352%




PART |. CALCULATION OF RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (in absolute amounts)

ttem Nature of ftem Account Code Amount
A. Calculation of Qualifying Capital
A.1 |NetTier 1 Capital 395000000000710000 78,821,292.09
A.2 |NetTier 2 Capital 395000000000720000 4,922,781.75
A3 |Total Qualifying Capital [Sum of A.1 and A.2] 395000000000700000 83,744,073.84
B. Calculation of Risk-Weighted Assets
B.1 [Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets [B.1(d) minus B.1(h)] 195931000000000000 231,646,494.14
(@) [Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets 100000000000811000 231,646,494.14
(b) [Risk-Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Assets 400000000000812000 0.00
(c) [Counterparty Risk-Weighted Assets 110100000000813000
(d) |[Total Credit Risk Weighted Assets [Sum of B.1(a), B.1(b) and B.1(c) ] 100000000000810000 231,646,494.14
(e) [Deductions from Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets
(f) |General Loan Loss Provision (in excess of the amount permitted to be 175150500000000000 0.00
included in upper Tier 2 capital)
[Partlil.1, ltem G.(1)(b) minus Partll, Item B.1 (7)]
(@) |Unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments affecting asset 365052000000711000 0.00
accounts based on the latest report of examination as approved by the
Monetary Board
(h) |Total Deductions [Sum of B.1(f) and B.1(g) ] 165000000000810000 0.00
B.2 |Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 195000000000830000 56,650,895.44
B.3 |Total Market Risk-Weighted Assets 100000000000820000
B.4 |Total Risk-Weighted Assets [Sum of B.1, B.2 and B.3] 100000000000800000 288,297,389.58
C. RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO [A.3 divided by B.4 990000000000000000 29.05
multiply by 100]
Iv. Risk Management Framework Adopted

Risk Assessment Procedure

The Risk Assessment Procedure provides the organization with a list of risks identified, stated
clearly and assessed as to their importance in meeting the Bank’s objectives. This procedure
shall help the Bank identify potential risks while fulfilling its regulatory compliance as it stays
on top of potential issues that could interfere outcomes.

BnK risk assessment: analyzing current risks and identifying potential risks that may or are
affecting the Bank.

BnK risk evaluation: Evaluation of BNK’s previous handling of risks and comparing
potential risks with criteria set out by the Bank such as costs and legal requirements.
Designing and implementing an overall risk management process for the Bank, which
includes analyses of the financial impact of risks on BNK.

Building risk awareness among the staff by providing them relevant support and training.
Risk assessment must also consider both internal and external sources for cost, schedule,
and technical risks. Early identification of risks is important because it is easier, less costly,
and less difficult to make changes and correction during the earlier stage, rather than
during the later phases of the project.

The Bank shall use a Risk Register to identify risks for their severity, and the actions and steps
to be taken to mitigate the risks. This will be the tool for monitoring the risk management




process within the Bank. The BnK Risk Register will be reviewed & approved by the Audit
Committee before issuance to the department heads.

Department / Person Responsible

e All employees have responsibilities to consider risks in making decisions.

e Those inleadership positions make business decisions and fulfill their responsibilities with
enough base analysis of risk information.

e Officers must provide information necessary for the Management to review and identify
loss exposures.

e Supervisors must be aware of their role in the prevention of loss and be accountable to
follow procedures, attend risk control meetings and when appropriate, and provide any
recommended training.

e For Departments, it is the responsibility of the Department Heads to ensure that the
Bank’s risk register is updated whenever necessary, as the updating of the risk register is
usually delegated to the control function.

Below is the risk appetite and tolerance of the bank:

2022 Risk Appetite and Tolerance Report Threshold December 31, 2022

Net Income Target

Earnings for 2023 £3.76 million
For the Period of
Januaryto - P£3.343 million
Capital Adequacy CET 1 ratio 4.5% 27.34%
Total CAR 10% 29.05%
Credit Risk PDR 10% 12.00%
Balance Sheet Risk Minimum Capital £50.0 Million P£79.35 million
Minimum Liquidity
Liquidity Risk Ratio 20%** 28.35%

No finding of unsafe
and unsound

Compliance Risk banking practice by None None
BSP.
CTR and STR reports 3 transactions
bmitted withi No delayed rted lat
Anti-Money Laundering Rsik / submi .e within ° ane / reportediate
the required unsubmitted (December 15,
timeframe 2022)

Major Reputational

. None None
Risk event

Reputational Risk

C. Bank-wide risk governance structure and risk management process (Define the roles
and responsibilities and the reporting lines for the different business units that
composed the risk management group/unit. For better appreciation, illustrate in a
chart/table form the risk management structure and organization of the relevant risk
management function. Discuss also the scope and nature of risk reporting and/or
measurement systems)




Business Units

Roles and Responsibilities

Scope & Nature of Risk
Report / Measurement

systems
Funds Management e Holds the key of cash | Interest Rate Risk
safe. Liquidity Risk
Compliance

e Receives cash from
other Banks/Branches
and acknowledges

them, where
necessary. Opens the
cash safe before

commencement  of
business along with
other personnel
holding the key.

e  Supervises receipt and
payment of cash.

e  Supervises the
carrying of the cash to
the cash Department.

e Delivers cash to the
paying cashier against
receipt on a memo.

e Arranges sending cash
to other Branches.

Accounting

- Recording and reporting of
cash flow transactions of a
company.

- takes charge of accounts
receivable, accounts payable,
financial reporting, and
maintaining financial controls.

Financial Risk
Technology Risk

Credit Support

- prepares all loan documents,
records, and takes custody of
all type of legal documents,
arranges for disbursements of
loan facility once security
documents are complete,
liaises with the Bank's lawyers,
frequently reviewing portfolio
/ credit and security files, etc.

- Safe-keeps the credit
files/documents of the
borrower.

-Computes payment
amortization schedules.

- Checks the Credit score of the
borrowers.

Credit Risk
Compliance Risk

Loans

- markets the loan products of
the Bank.

- obtains information for loan
applications and  answers
guestions about the process.

Credit Risk
Market Risk
Compliance Risk




V.

- Analyses applicants' financial
status, credit, and property
evaluations to  determine
feasibility of granting loans.
- Explains to customers the
different types of loans and
credit options that are
available, as well as the terms
of those services.
- Obtains copies of loan
applicants' credit histories,
corporate financial statements,

and other financial
information.
d. AML governance and culture, and description of the overall Money Laundering

(ML)/Terrorist Financing (TF) risk management framework to prevent the use of the
Bank for ML/TF activities

>

>

Establishing the identity of new individual customers (Know your Client or
KYC).

Identifying the true owners when opening new accounts for
companies/corporations.

Producing and retaining identification and transaction records.

Reporting covered and suspicious transactions to the competent authorities
(Anti-Money Laundering Council).

Enhancing relationships with the authorities.

Preventive procedures, training, pre-employment screening and internal
controls.

Corporate Governance

a. Overall corporate governance structure and practices (describe the overall
governance framework adopted by the Bank)

>

Reviewing and reporting to the Committee and Board on matters of corporate
governance and developing and recommending to the Board corporate
governance principles applicable to the Bank;

Monitoring compliance with regulations, directives, and other instructions of
the regulatory bodies and the Board in regards to corporate governance
issues;

Overseeing the Board and its committees in their annual assessments of their
performance, including their supervisory oversight functions.

Reviewing and evaluating the qualifications of all persons nominated to the
Board as well as those nominated to other positions requiring appointment
by the Board of Directors.

Periodically reviewing and reassessing the Bank’s Corporate Governance
guidelines and policies and recommend proposed changes to the Board for
approval.

Periodically reviewing and reporting to the Board on matters of corporate
governance, including reviewing and recommending to the Board regarding
stockholder proposals.




» Overseeing the Compliance Officer’s duties and responsibilities and carrying
out such other duties that may be delegated to the Compliance Officer by the
Board from time to time.

Selection process for the Board and senior management (describe the Bank’s
process/procedure for identifying, assessing and selecting Board and senior
management candidates to ensure application of fit and proper standards).

For the Board

» The Business affairs of the Bank shall be conducted under the supervision and
control of a Board of Seven (7) Directors. The holders of common stock
entitled to vote shall elect such directors in the manner provided in Section
31 of Act 1459, as amended, whose qualifications shall be subject to the
approval of the Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

> He shall be at least twenty-five (25) years of age at the time of his election
appointment;

> He shall be at least a college graduate or have at least five (5) years’
experience in business;

» He must have attended a special seminar on corporate governance for Board
of directors conducted or accredited by the BSP.

» He must be fit and proper for the position of a director of the Bank. In
determining whether a person is fit and proper for the position of a director,
the following matters must be considered: integrity/probity, competence,
education, diligence and experience/training.

» The regular term of a director shall be from the date of his election to the
regular annual meeting of the stockholders of the Bank or until his successor
shall have been elected and qualified to take his place at said annual meeting.
Unless a director shall sooner resign, be removed from office, or becomes
unable to act by reason of death, disqualification, or otherwise, he shall hold
office during the term for which elected and until his successor is elected and
qualified.

> A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but less than a quorum
may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is in attendance.

> If vacancies occur in the Board of Directors, the remaining directors
constituting a quorum shall by majority vote, elect persons to fill such
vacancies for the unexpired term. In cases of resignation or death of all or a
majority of the directors, any stockholder may call a special meeting in the
same manner that the President may call such meeting, and the directors for
the unexpired term may be elected at any such special meeting in the Manner
provided for the election at annual meetings.

> A director may be removed in the manner provided for by law at a regular or
special meeting called for that purpose, by a vote holding or representing
two-thirds (2/3) of the subscribed stock entitled to vote.

The Committee shall oversee the members of the Board’s annual self-evaluation and
will assess the performance of the senior management officers. It will also assess the
performance of Board Committees in relation to the strategic objectives of the Bank.
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For Officers

» He shall be at least twenty-one (21) years of age;

» He shall be at least a college graduate, or have at least five (5) years’
experience in Banking or trust operations or related activities or in a field
related to his position and responsibilities or have undergone training in
Banking or trust operations acceptable to the appropriate department of
the SES.

» He must be fit and proper for the position he is being proposed/appointed
to. In determining whether a person is fit and proper for a particular
position, the following matters must be considered: integrity,
competence, education, diligence, and experience/training.

» The Executive Officers of the Bank shall include the President, Vice
President, Secretary, Bank Manager, and a Cashier who shall be elected
by a majority of the entire membership of the Board of Directors at its.
First meeting held after the annual stockholders meeting, and at such
other times during the year as may be required to fill vacancies. The
position of Secretary and Cashier may be combined in one person.

» The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. He shall see
to it that all orders and resolution of the Board of Directors, all orders of
the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of the Philippines, and all rules
and regulations of the Bank are carried into effect, and shall exercise such
other powers and perform such other duties as are prescribed for the
Office of the President in these by laws.

» The Vice-President shall exercise the power, authority and duties of the
President during the absence or inability to act on the latter.

» The Secretary shall provide for the keeping of the records of the Bank and
shall have the custody of the seal of the corporation. The Secretary shall,
in addition, exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as
are prescribed for the Office of the Secretary in these by-laws, and all
other duties usually pertaining to that office, and such other duties as
may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

» The Cashier shall have custody of all funds, securities, and other assets of
the association, shall provide full and complete record of all assets and
liabilities of the Bank, and shall make such reports with respect there to
as may be required by the Board of Directors. The Cashier shall, in
addition, exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as
are prescribed by these by-laws for the office of the Cashier, and all other
duties usually pertaining to that office, and such other duties as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

> The Board of Directors may provide for the position of a Bank Manager
who shall have, subject to the control of the Board of Directors general
management of the business affairs of the Bank.

c. Board’s overall responsibility (describe the general responsibility of the Board in
the approval and oversight of management’s implementation of Bank’s
strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate governance and corporate values,
among others)
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Shall act in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability, and
fairness.

Determine the Corporation’s purpose, its vision and mission and strategies to
carry out its objectives.

Ensure that the Corporation complies with all relevant laws, regulations, and
codes of best business practices.

Establish strategic objectives and a set of corporate values that will be
communicated throughout the organization and its member Banks.

Ensure transparency and receipt of sufficient information on a timely basis for
effective governance.

d. Description of the major role and contribution of the chairman of the Board
» The major role and contribution of the Chairman of the Board is to manage
and to provide leadership to the Board of Directors of the Bank. The Chairman
is accountable to the Board and acts as a direct contact between the Board
and the Management of the Bank through the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
The Chairman acts as the communicator for Board decisions where
appropriate.
e. Board composition (include the names of the members of the Board. For each
member, include the following:
Percentage
- Number of f sh
Principal Number of l.Jm ero of shares
Names of the Direct and held to
Type of Stockholder years .
members of the . . Indirect total
Directorship | represented | served as .
Board . . . shares outstanding
if nominee Director
held shares of
the Bank
Camacho, Jose | Executive Compania De | 7 1 0.0001%
Isidro N. Maria Clara
Holdings, Inc.
Ma. Teresa M. | Independent | Independent | 2 1 0.0001%
Jesudason Director
Lilia G. Baun Independent | Independent | 2 1 0.0001%
Director
De Ocampo, | Executive Amang 7 1 0.0001%
Leonard R. Rodriguez
Holdings, Inc.
Lorenzo, Martin | Non- Amang 7 1 0.0001%
P. Executive Rodriguez
Holdings, Inc.
Lagua, Benel D. Independent | Amang 3 1 0.0001%
Director Rodriguez
Holdings, Inc.
Pineda, Jesus M. | Non- MMP 15 1 0.0001%
Executive Investments
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f. Board qualification (provide details of the relevant qualifications and experiences of
each member of the Board of directors, including current directorship and officership
in other companies, their age and nationality).

Current Directorship &

Board Member Company Officership Age Nationality
-Diniwid  Beach  Hotel | Chairman 67 Filipino
Corporation (Philippines)

-Credit Suisse (Singapore) | Vice Chairman
Limited
-Transnational Diversified | Director
Group  Holdings, Inc.
(Philippines)

: ' -A Mining Corporation of | Director

Jose Isidro N. Camacho Filsystem (Philippines)

- Compania de Anuncia | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
-Compania de Carlos | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- Compania de Lorenzo | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- Compania de Teodoro | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- Compania de Feliz | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- Compania de Maria Clara, | Chairman
Inc. (Phils)
-Compania de Roberta | Chairman
Holdings, Inc (Phils)
- Compania de Arsenio | Chairman
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- BT Investment Holdings, | Director
Inc.
- Sun Life of Canada (Phils), | Non-Executive Chairman
Inc.
- Sun Life Grepa Financial, | Director
Inc. (Phils)
- Amang Rodriguez | Member, Board of Directors
Holdings, Inc. (Phils)
- Asian Infrastructure | Member of International
Investment Bank (AlIB), | Advisory Panel
China
-Fil-Invest Credit -Investment Officer / 71 Filipino

Ma. Teresa M. Jesudason

Corporation / Asia-Euro
Money Brokers, Inc.
- Bankers Trust Company

Manager & Chief Broker

- Vice President, Manila

- Vice President and Team

Leader, Hongkong

- Assistant Treasurer, Sales

and Customer  Service,
Manila

- Various positions with
Bankers Trust with
Increasing levels of

responsibility
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- Deutsche Bank A.G.,
Philippines

- Banco Santander
Philippines, Inc.

- Rizal Commercial
Banking Corporation

- INDUSTRIAL GUARANTEE
LOAN FUND (IGLF)

- Development Bank of the
Philippine (DBP)

- DBP MANAGEMENT

- Vice President & Head of
Global Institutional Services
Department - Client
Management, Sales &
Service for Philippines

- Vice President, Head of
Deposits and Investment
Services

-First Vice President, Head of
Institutional Relationship
Management Division

- Chief Executive Officer
Member, Technical Advisory
Group

- Head, Financial Institutions
Group

- Head, Sales & Distribution
Group, Branch Banking
Sector

- Member, Management
Committee

- Member, Asset Liability
Management Committee

- Member, Executive Credit
Committee

- Member, Anti-Money
Laundering Committee

- Head, Wholesale Banking
Dept., Branch Banking Sector
- First Senior Vice President
- Director

S

Lilia G. Bau

CORPORATION
- LGU GUARANTY - Director
CORPORATION
-LGU Guarantee Corp. -Director 63 Filipino
-PNB Securities -Director
-Investment House | -Director
Association of the Phils.
-PNB Capital & Investment | -EVP & OIC
Corp -EVP & COO
-SVP & OIC

-PNB Investment Banking
Corp

-Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP)

-DBP Leasing Corp
-Al-Amanah Islamic
Investment Bank
-TIDCORP Provident Fund
-TIDCORP/Philippine
Export Import  Credit
Agency

-PNB-Investment Banking
Group

-PNB—-Treasury
Department

-VP & Treasurer

-SVP, Head Corp Banking
Group Sector

-Director

-Director

-Director
-Vice President
-Assistant Vice President

-Bank Executive Officer IV
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-PNB-Merchant  Banking | -Department Manager

Department -Bank Executive Officer Il
-Senior Research Specialist

-PNB-Internal Audit | -Examiner

Department

-Dasmarinas Village | -Board of Director 55 Filipino

Homeowners Association

-Far Eastern University -MBA Professor

-Wildflour -Director

- Far East Bank and Trust -Trader/Economic
Forecaster

- CitiBank GCB, Phils -Portfolio Manager, Asst Mgr
-Financial Analyst

Leonard R. De Ocampo - Management Associate

- Johnson & Johnson Phils | - Corp Planning & Dev’'t Mgr.

- Pepsi Cola Products Phil - Sr Financial Planning Mgr

- Manila Times - Columnist

- University Of Asia and the | -Undergrad Professor

Pacific

- Cibo Restaurant -Consultant

- Filia Foods, Inc. - Consultant

- Macondray Plastics, Inc. - Director

- Pancake House, Inc. - Director

- Digitizedata.com, Inc. - Founder

-Philippine Institute of | Director 66 Filipino

Pure and Applied

Chemistry (PIPAC)

-Institute of Corporate | Fellow

Directors

-Management association | Lifetime member

of the Philippines

- Financial Executive of the | Lifetime member

Benel D. Lagua Philippines

- Dela Salle University | Professional Lecturer IV

Professional Schools, Inc.

- Ateneo de Manila Lecturer

-First Lucky Holdings, Corp | Chairman & CEO 57 Filipino

Martin Ignacio P. Lorenzo

- CAT Resource and Asset
Holdings, Inc.

- Altius Real
Holdings, Inc.

- Courxera Holdings, Corp. -
Buena Vista Corporate
Asset Holdings, Inc.

- Cocosorbetero Holdings,
Inc.

- Block 9 Lot 1 Holdings,
Inc.

- First Green Renewable
Holdingds, Inc.

- First Lucky Education
Holdings Corp.

- Macondray Finance Corp.
- Macondray Insurance
Brokers Corp.

Property

Chairman & CEO

Chairman

Chairman
Chairman & CEO

Chairman & President

Chairman & President

Chairman & President

Chairman & President

Chairman & President
Chairman & President
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- Marlor Investment Corp. | Chairman & President
- SORestaurant Holdings | Chairman & President
Corp.

-Philippine Lighting | President 84 Filipino
Industry Association
-Ugong Trade and Holdings | Chairman / President
-Filipina Climate Solution,

Inc. Chairman
Jesus M. Pineda, Jr.
g. List of Board-level committees including membership and function.

AUDIT COMMITTEE POSITION

BENEL D. LAGUA Chairman

MA. TERESA M. JESUDASON Member

LILIA G. BAUN Member

Function: To assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight

responsibilities with respect to internal controls, including financial reporting
control and information technology, security, accounting policies and
auditing for the financial reporting process and compliance with related legal
and regulatory requirements. Assist the Board in its oversight of:
i Integrity of the financial reporting;
ii.  Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
iii. The effectiveness of internal controls and procedures;
iv.  The qualifications and independence of the independent auditors;
and
v.  The performance of the Company’s independent auditors, and of the
internal audit program.

> CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POSITION
COMMITTEE
MA. TERESA M. JESUDASON Chairman
BENEL D. LAGUA Member
LILIA G. BAUN Member
Function: To assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its corporate

governance responsibilities. The Committee is responsible for exercising
oversight with respect to the governance of the Board of Directors of the
Bank, including:
i Reviewing and reporting to the Board on matters of corporate
governance and developing and recommending to the Board
corporate governance principles applicable to the Bank;
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ii. To monitor compliance of regulations, directives, and other
instructions of the regulatory bodies and the Board in regards to
Corporate Governance issues; and

iii.  Oversee the Board and its committees in their annual assessments of
their performance, including their supervisory oversight functions.

iv. Review and evaluate the qualifications of all persons nominated to
the Board as well as those nominated to other positions requiring
appointment by the Board of directors.

> EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE POSITION
JESUS M. PINEDA, JR. Chairman
BENEL D. LAGUA Member
LEONARD R. DE OCAMPO Member
Function: Shall provide advice to and aid the officers of the Bank in all

matters concerning its interests and the management of its business and shall
exercise all the administrative powers of the Board of Directors with
reference to the usual and ordinary business of the Bank when said Board of
Directors is not in session.

> RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION COMMITTEE

RELATED PARTY POSITION
TRANSACTION COMMITTEE
LILIA G. BAUN Chairman
BENEL D. LAGUA Member
MA. TERESA M. JESUDASON Member

An overview of the general responsibilities of the Committee is simplified
below:
1. Evaluate existing relations between and among businesses and
counterparties.
2. Evaluate all material RPTs to ensure that these are not undertaken on
more favorable economic terms.
3. Ensure appropriate disclosures are made and/or information is
provided to regulatory bodies of the Bank.
4. Report to the Board of directors the status and aggregate exposures to
each related party.
5. Ensure that RPTs are subject to independent review or audit process.
6. Oversee the implementation of the system of RPTs, including the
review of RPT policies and procedures.

Directors’ attendance at Board and committee meetings (include the total number of
Board and committee meetings for the election year and the number of Board and
committee meetings attended by each director). A sample template is provided
below.
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Corporate Related Party
Board Number of Audit Committee Govern'ance Transac'tlons
Number of Meetings Number of Meetings Committee Committee
Directors Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Attended % Attended | % Attended | % Attended | %
1. Camacho, Jose | 4 100%
Isidro N.
2. De Ocampo, | 4 100% | 8 100% 3 100% | 3 100%
Leonard R.
3. Ma. Teresa M. | 4 100% | 8 100% 3 100% | 3 100%
Jesudason
4.lilia G. Baun 4 100% | 8 100% 3 100% | 3 100%
5. Pineda, Jesus | 3 75%
M.
6.Benel D. Lagua | 3 75% 8 100% 3 100% | 3 100%
7.Martin P. |3 75%
Lorenzo
Total Number of | 4 100% | 8 100% 3 100% | 3 100%
Meetings held
during the year

i Changes in the Board of directors (for complex Banks only) (indicate the changes in
the composition of the Board of directors that happened during the period including
the reason for said change, i.e., resignation, death, removal)

> Not Applicable

j. List of executive officers/senior management (disclose the name, position, relevant
qualifications/experience, age and nationality of the officer. Senior management
refers to the president/CEO or officer of equivalent rank and other persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

Bank).
QUALIFICATIONS /
NAME POSITION EXPERIENCE AGE | NATIONALITY

President -6 years in Banking | 55 Filipino
institutions as
Trader/Economic forecaster,
Financial Analyst
-24 vyears as Director of
financial company.

Leonard R. De Ocampo - RBAP member

VP/Head — Loans | -5 years in Insurance | 57 Filipino

and Business | company as Senior Field

Development Auditor
-12  years in  Banking
institutions (LBP) as Area

Rene Roque C. Neri

Lending Head
-5 years in leasing company
as VP-Finance.
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VP- Liability | -24 years in LandBank as AVP. | 71 Filipino
’ ‘ Generation -19 years in various Banking
Py ye Institutions.
m ;b
Manuel I. Inserto
VP — Human | -Over 25 years in the human | 55 Filipino
Resources resources management
Management and | profession and organization
Corporate development, in the financial
Communications | services industry.
‘ - 6 years HR consultant for
Theresa S. Datinguinoo insurance, financial services,
and IT services companies.
Senior Manager | -9 vyears in multinational | 51 Filipino
and Chief | company as personal and
Compliance accounting assistant
Officer -15 years in Rural Bank as
Cashier, Accounting Officer
and currently Compliance
Officer.
- Member of Compliance and
Internal Audit Group of RBAP
Internal Auditor -3 years in Banking | 38 Filipino
experience as Audit Examiner
-1 year Accounting Staff in
Foundation company.
-2 years as Audit Staff in
mobile and computer
accessories company.
Irene Simbajon
k. Performance Assessment Program (describe the process adopted by the Bank in

assessing the performance of the Board and senior management based on established
performance standards that are consistent with the Bank’s strategic objectives).

The Board of Directors and the different Board committees have self-administered
performance evaluation done yearly. The Bank’s senior management’s performance
is assessed using a Performance Evaluation Form that measures both key result areas
and competencies.
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SELF-EVALUATION FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY - DECEMBER 2022

Board composition and structure - its constitution and diversity and
that of its Committees, competencies of the ° Board and Committee
charters, frequency of meetings, procedures;

Very

Fair

Good

My awareness and understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the Board
of Directors.

My understanding of the organization's vision and mission and all its products
and services.

w

Clarity of the Board's structural pattern (board composition, reporting
relationships).

My understanding of the function of each Board Committee and agreement with
the composition of each committee.

How [ continuously seek to enhance my skills, knowledge and understanding of|
the activities of the Bank and the developments in the banking industry through
continuing education.

Board Dynamics - annual Board calendar, availability of information,
communication and interactions with CEO and senior executives, Board

genda, group coh , and the quality of participation in Board m eetings;

Very

Fair

Good

My attention and dedication that allowed me to properly and effectively carry
out my duties and responsibilities as a Board member by regularly attending
meetings and replying to communications in a timely manner.

~l

My being comfortable with my colleagues and in expressing my thoughts and
ideas during Board meetings and other interactions with the Board members.

ca

My active participation in policy-related decisions which effectively guide the
operational activities of the Bank.

[r:]

My exercise of independent judgment by viewing each problem or situation
objectively.

=
=]

How | always kept myself well-informed about matters needing the attention off
the Board.

Strategy, risk, and financial performance — the Board’s role in company
strategy, the integrity and the robustness of the financial and other controls
regarding abusive related party transactions, vigilant mechanism and risk
management.

Very

Fair

Good

My awareness of the Bank's business strategy, goals, and financial performance
at any given time.

=
1¥]

My active involvement in giving relevant inputs conceming the Bank’s business
strategies vis-a-vis the Bank's operational performance.

The way | always expressed my ideas and suggestions for the Bank to continue
enforcing stricter controls and measures to help mitigate risks and for good

13 |corporate governance and how | followed through on my suggestions.
My knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the Bank,
including its Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, the rules and regulations of|
the SEC and the requirements of the BSP and where applicable, the
14 requirements of other regulatory agencies.
My awareness of the Bank "s pending (if any) and recently-resolved issues with
15 |the BSP, and how | contritbuted to resolving such issues.

Board integrity, reputation, and culture

Very

Fair

Good

=
=)

The fairness with which I conducted business transactions with the Bank and

iguaranteed that my personal interest did not conflict with the interest of the

-

7

My honesty and loyalty to the Bank, keeping in mind that I always acted in the
best interest of the Bank and its stockholders, regardless of the amount of their
stockholdings, and other stakeholders such as its depositors, investors, and
borrowers, and the general public.

My integrity and professionalism as | continued to be of good standing in my
community and profession, and in the other organizations | serve.

]

How | always acted judiciously before deciding on any matter discussed in the
Board by carefully evaluating the issues, and if necessary asking questions and
clarifications.

=)
=]

How | kept secure and confidential all non-public information acquired or

learned by reason of my position asa director.

l. Orientation and Education Program (disclose the in-house and external training
program of the Bank for its directors and senior management to ensure that they

continuously possess the qualifications for the position).

Corporate Governance

Taxation
AMLA

YV VVYVYYVY

RBAP training Programs / seminars
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.
EMPLOYEE TRAININGS FOR 2022

2022 Training Hours

TRAINING

BSP Briefing on Relief Measures on Loan
Modifications/Restructured Loan & Capital Relief on 12
Provisioning Requirements
Basic Corporate Governance for RB Directors 128
Walk-Through Session - Credit Risk Management Manual 42
HR Resource & Disaster Management and Business 24
Continuity Manuals
CIC Credit Report & Credit Score Assessing Credit 18
Worthdiness Amid a Pandemic
CIC CIC Webinar Series on “Responsible borrowing and )8
combating abusive lending in the time of COVID-19”
RBAP & PDIC Series on Regulatory Issuances 4
Basic Occupational Safety & Health for SO1 Training 64
RBAP Walk through Session On Compliance Audit & MTPP 6
Manual
IT Auditing on Banks (IT Risk, Controls & IT Auditing 8
How Spot Fake Documents, Verify Signature, Detect & 2
Prevent Forgery
Accounting For Non-Accountants with Financial 64
Statement Analysis
Compliance & Internal Auditors Core Group Workshop 16
Advance Excel Training for Bankers 80
Philhealth Employee Virtual Forum 2022 5
BAIPHIL Executive Learning Series 2022 6
Regional Workshop on Risk Management of SME Lending 25
BAIPHIL Live2Lead Leardership workshop 16
CRD PROJECT: Invitation to the Seminar for Participating 3
Banks
Briefing on Submission of Reports via IFSS Enterprise 6
Web Portal

2022 TOTAL TRAINING HOURS 579
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Retirement and Succession Policy (describe the retirement and succession policy of
the Bank including the retirement age for the Board and senior management; and the
term limit for the members of the Board).

RETIREMENT POLICY

» The Bank’s Retirement Plan, through a Retirement Trust Fund, shall provide

payment of a definite amount to its employee’s retirement from service,
subject to the regulations stated in this policy.

The Bank has the prerogative to retire an employee who has reached the age
of sixty (60) and has rendered at least five (5) years of continuous service in
the Bank.

SUCCESSION PLANNING POLICY

» The Bank’s succession planning policy provides the foundation for the

>

continuing business operations of the Bank by making provisions for the
development, replacement, and strategic application of key people over time.

The Company’s succession planning program is a part of a broader talent
management endeavour that aims to attract the best talent, engage those
individuals, and develop them through well-planned development efforts.
Succession planning enables the organization to build its bench strength to
guarantee its long-term health, growth, and stability.

A job hierarchy within each functional unit is present based on the Bank'’s
approved organization structure that responds to the operational
requirements of the business. For a common understanding of terms, job
hierarchy may also be referred to as Job Level or Rank.

Following a well-planned and executed job evaluation study, each functional

hierarchy ranges from the lowest job level (staff positions) to the highest rank
(department level), as seen below:
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FUNCTIONAL UNITS

EXECUTIVE|  DIVISION HEAD AVPIVRISVP AVPIVRISVP AVPVPISVP AVPIVPISVP AVPIVPSVP AVPIVRISVP | AVPIVPISVP | AVPVPISVP
6 DEPARTMENT HEAD |Loars & Bus. Dev. | Credit Support & Remedal bty Ganeration Head Cash Maragement |, & IT Head Chonf Compliance | Cheef Insemal HRM & Admin
MANAGERIAL  |Head Mgt Head B [T iccouning = | oficer Audtor Head
Creit Support Supenvisor
5 UNIT/SECTION HEAD cams Superviscr | esmedial Mamagemnent Linbiity Generalion Cash Maragement Acrouning Supensiecr Comglance e A HR Suervsor
Loars S e ment Accountng Superyiso Iriemal Audin
SUPERVISORY " s Supervisoe Supervisor 7 | Supervisor Adm. Supervisor
Supervisor
ASSISTANT
Coredit Support Asst - o e
4 SUPERVISORY Team Leader Suparvsor Team Leader Senior Casher Acoouning Specalst | Audt Speciast HR Specithc
SENIOR TECHNICAL |~ cecion Meat S e B 0 RRCES | s pecain ST L adm. Oficer
EXPERT . .
3 TECHNCAL Mecourt Ofcsr Credit Veriicaion Oficer I Branch Cashiar Mecouning Assocae Compiiancs hdt Assiciate
EXPERT ccount OF Coblecion Oficer Accourt Oficer Cas countng Ass Associe it A
Wiz i Loans Doc. Assistant Ca HR. Assztant
2 ASSISTANT o Fance ans Lok, Aasen Adninieystive Acsistant | Sanice Teler Accouning Mesicae. | 0T Aut Actistnt =
Asssint Colection Assstont Asssant Adm, Asst
Loans Documentasion Sl Usley Sof
1 STAFF Micrbnance Suf |- . Adniniswatve Suf | Juice Teller Accouning S Complonce Suf  |AuftSf [
Colection Suf Admin S

» For the ongoing development of the workforce, the Human Resources

Management, in collaboration with heads of units, facilitates the setting up of
a training plan for employees to help address identified performance gaps and
ensure the technical and behavioral readiness of employees to assume higher
responsibilities. Like a roadmap, the Management is guided by the
requirements that staff need to meet in order to ensure good performance
and career progression. It covers the formal training programs suited for each
level and position, the supervised and informal/on-the-job exposure, and
other hands-on experience that would guarantee at the very least, the
satisfactory and acceptable performance in a job.

n. REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy and Structure for executive and non-executive directors
(disclose the Bank’s remuneration policy and the structure of its
remuneration package for the Board).

No Compensation shall be paid any director as such, but the director of the
Bank may be allowed reasonable honoraria for attendance at meetings, and
also reasonable expenses incurred in connection thereto. Salaries of the
executive officers of the Bank shall be fixed by the Board of Directors subject
to the approval of the Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

All Board members (Present) are given a per diem for every Board of Directors
meeting.

Remuneration Policy for senior management (disclose the process used for
determining the remuneration of the president/CEO or officer of equivalent
rank, and the four (4) most highly compensated management officers of the
Bank).
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0.

>

For the CEOQ, the package is decided upon by the Board of Directors. For the
Officers of the Bank, the President and CEO approves the package after the
formal Board approval of the appointment. Next to the President, the four (4)
most highly compensated management officers of the Bank in 2021 are the
VP for Loans Department, VP for Liability Generation Department, VP for HRM
Department & Corporate Communications, and the Compliance Officer.

An employee who has been granted regular status or permanent
appointment for a certain position shall be paid at least the minimum of the
established salary range for his position.

Salary increases within the established range shall be granted on the basis of
merit and at the discretion of the Management, following the annual
approved salary budget of the Company.

Policies and procedures on related party transactions

>

>

It has been agreed upon that the Bank will not give out any DOSRI loans.

To observe good governance and approve an overarching policy on the
handling of RPTs to ensure that there is effective compliance with existing
laws, rules and regulations at all times, that these are conducted on an arms’
-length basis, and that no stakeholder is unduly disadvantaged. A group-wide
RPT policy shall be adopted, encompassing all entities within the Banking
group, taking into account their size, structure, risk profile and complexity of
operations.

To approve all material RPTs, those that cross the materiality threshold, and
write-off of material exposures to related parties, and submit the same for
confirmation by majority vote of the stockholders in the annual stockholders'
meeting. Any renewal or material changes in the terms and conditions of RPTs
shall also be approved by the Board of directors. All final decisions of the
Board on material RPTs, including important facts about the nature, terms,
conditions, original and outstanding individual and aggregate balances,
justification and other details that would allow stockholders to make
informed judgment as to the reasonableness of the transaction, must be
clearly disclosed during stockholder’s meetings and duly reflected in the
minutes of Board and stockholders' meetings.

To delegate to appropriate management committee, the approval of RPTs
that are below the materiality threshold, subject to confirmation by the Board
of directors. This shall, however, exclude DOSRI transactions, which are
required to be approved by the Board. All decisions under the delegated
authority must be properly recorded in the minutes of the committee
meetings.

To oversee the integrity, independence, and effectiveness of the policies and
procedures for whistle-blowing. The Board should ensure that senior
management addresses legitimate issues on RPT that are raised. The Board
shall take responsibility for ensuring that a staff member who has raised
concerns is protected from detrimental treatment or reprisals.
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p.

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION

>
>

>

>

Self-assessment is done by its Board members.

The Committee shall oversee the members of the Board’s annual self-
evaluation and will assess the performance of the senior management
officers. It will also assess the performance of Board Committees in relation
to the strategic objectives of the Bank.

Assessments will be summarized by HR and interpreted by the Corp.
Secretary.

The Board Committee assists management in preparing the corporate
business plan that will provide over-all business direction and guide in
attaining objectives. It receives and reviews reports of internal and external
auditors and regulatory agencies where applicable, and ensures that
Management is taking appropriate corrective/preventive actions, in a timely
manner in addressing control and compliance functions with regulatory
agencies. It provides oversight and overall supervision of the Banks’ risk
management activities including, but not limited to operational risks, finance
risk, legal risk, etc.

Internal Audit - The scope of internal auditing encompasses, but it is not
limited to, the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank's governance, risk management, and internal controls as well as
the quality of performance in carrying out assigned responsibilities to achieve
the Bank's stated goals and objectives. This includes:

e Evaluating risk exposure relating to achievement of the Bank's
strategic objectives.

e Evaluating the reliability and integrity of information and the means
used to identify measure, classify and report such information.

e Evaluating the systems established to ensure the compliance with
those policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations which could
have a significant impact on the organization.

e Evaluating the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate,
verifying the existence of such assets.

e Evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency with which resources are
employed

e Evaluating operations or programs to ascertain whether results are
consistent with established objectives and goals and whether the
operations or programs are being carried out as planned.

e Monitoring and evaluating governance processes.

e Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the Bank's risk
management processes.

e Evaluating the quality of performance of external auditors and the
degree of coordination with internal audit.

e Performing consulting and advisory services related to governance,
risk management and control as appropriate for the organization.

e Reporting periodically on the internal audit activity's purpose,
authority, responsibility and performance relative to its plan.

e Reporting significant risk exposures and control issues, including
fraud risks, governance issues and other matters needed or
requested by the Board.
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g.

Evaluating specific operations at the request of the Board or
management as appropriate.

» Compliance — has the following duties and responsibilities, which may be
expanded and supplemented from time to time upon the approval of the
Board of Directors, AROC or CGC, or as needed and required by the
government regulatory bodies:

10.

11.

Oversees the proper and efficient implementation of the Bank’s
Compliance System and Plan;

Identifies, monitors, and controls compliance risks as defined in
BSP’s Circular No. 972, Series of 2017;

Provides guidance to the Bank’s Board of Directors, AROC, CGC and
Senior Management Team on matters relating to compliance;
Initiates the development and/or revisions of policies and
procedures for the operation of the Compliance Plan and its related
activities to prevent non-compliance with regulatory requirements;
Collaborates with other departments (e.g. Internal Audit, HR) to
investigate breaches in the Compliance Plan and material breaches
in the pertinent Banking laws, regulations, codes of conduct, and
standards of good practice;

Monitors and tests compliance by performing compliance testing on
applicable laws and regulatory requirements in accordance with set
test standards.

Reports to the AROC & CGC significant compliance matters as well
as breaches in pertinent Banking laws, regulations, codes of conduct,
and standards of good practice;

Institutes and maintains an effective compliance communication
plan for the Bank, including: i) dissemination of new and
amendments to regulatory issuances; ii) training; iii) heightened
awareness of significant Banking laws, regulatory issuances,
compliance issues and related policies and procedures, codes of
conduct, and standards good practice;

Collaborates with regulatory bodies, agencies, and compliance
organizations to clarify ambiguous provisions of enacted laws or
regulatory issuances affecting the Bank.

Exercises oversight responsibilities over compliance-related
activities of outsourced functions to ensure consistent
implementation of the Bank’s Compliance System and Plan;
Ensures that regulatory reports are assigned to appropriate units in
the Bank and there are relevant measures to ensure that these are
submitted to the regulators on time.

Dividend policy (discuss the Bank’s policies and procedures for declaring dividends
and the amount of total dividends declared during the year, if any)

>

>

Given the state of financials, the Bank aims to declare dividends in the next 5-

year horizon.

Shareholders shall have the right to receive dividends subject to the discretion
of the Board
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» The Company shall be compelled to declare dividends when its retained
earnings shall be in excess of 100% of its paid-in capital stock, except: a) when
justified by definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved by
the Board or b) when the corporation is prohibited under any loan agreement
with any financial institution or creditor, whether local or foreign, from
declaring dividends without its consent, and such consent has not been
secured; or ¢) when it can be clearly shown that such retention is necessary
under special circumstances obtaining in the Corporation, such as when there
is a need for special reserve, for probable contingencies.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives (discuss any initiative undertaken or
proposed to be undertaken by the Bank during the year)

» Itis the Bank’s belief that serving the Micro and SME segments of society is in
itself a fulfilment of corporate social responsibility.

Consumer Protection Practices

» To ensure the Bank’s proper monitoring of accounts and to avoid payment
delinquencies, the Accounting Unit, in coordination with Internal Audit, shall
generate quarterly loan and savings account balances to be issued to each
client.

l @ #  AboutUs Products and Services v People and Events  Client Testimonials  ContactUs v ]

Consumer Assistance

et us know through the following ct

o/ Phone H walk-ins

= Email

B Social Media

Consumer Protection Oversight Function

1. Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Senior Management
The Board of Directors is responsible for approving and overseeing the
implementation of policies inclined with the Bank’s Financial Consumer
Protection Framework and develop strategies establishing an effective
oversight of Bank’s consumer protection programs and as described herein:

1. Approve of Financial Consumer Protection Framework policies
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2. Review of mechanism to ensure compliance with the policies
periodically.

The Senior Management team is responsible for developing strategies for the
Bank’s consumer protection framework.

2. Consumer Protection Risk Management System (CPRMS)
The Consumer Protection Risk Management System of Bangko ng Kabuhayan
(BnK) aims to address and prevent risks that may threaten the Bank and cause
financial harm or loss to consumers.
a. Board and Senior Management Oversight
The Board and the Senior Management are responsible for
periodically assessing the effectiveness of the CPRMS.
b. Compliance Program
The Compliance Office is responsible for the over-all
compliance system that should prevent or reduce regulatory
violations and protect the Bank’s consumers.
c. Policies and Procedures
The BnK’s policies and procedures are in accordance with the
following:
a) consistent with Consumer Protection Policies
approved by the Board;
b) ensure that consumer protection practices support
the business operations;
¢) address compliance with consumer protection laws,
rules and regulations; and
d) periodically reviewed as they serve as reference for
Bank’s employees.

d. Internal Audit Function
The BnK’s Internal Audit is responsible for the assessment on
the effectiveness of implementation of the internal policies
and procedures of Consumer Protection Framework.

e. Training
» The BnK shall provide training to its personnel in line with the
Consumer Protection Framework rules and regulations.

» Capital Adequacy Ratio — The Bank has exceeded the
minimum risk-based capital adequacy ratio, expressed as a
percentage of qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets, of
not less than 10% as required by the BSP; its CAR being
29.05% as of December 31, 2022.

VI. Corporate Information

a. Present the organizational structure as of December 2022, including the name and
position of key officers
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Board of Directors

Jose 1sidro N. Camacho Martin . Lorenzo
Jesus M, Pineda, Jr. MaTeresaM. besudman
Benel D, Lagus L3 G. B3un

Leonardo R. De Ocampo

Corparate Governance Committee Related Party Transaction Committee Executive Committee
O ea M tone Chairman
'Ih‘.":'lr-r\a Jesudmon e . Pinada i
2. BanelD.Laga b 3 M. Jesudmon
3. LiiaG.Baun 2. Leonard k. De Ocampo

Lilis G. Baun

2. Manuell. Ingerto
3. Rene Roque C. Neri

Jennifer E. Valcarcel [ Leonard R. De Ocampo Trene L. Simbajon
C 1i [ President B Internal Auditor
----------------------- e

LOANS & BUSINESS CREDIT SUPPORT & R MANAGEMENT, ADMS &
LABILITY CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT TREASURY & FINANCE OEPT,

DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT
Manuel |. Inserto Eden E. gela Cruz
. [

Rene Rogue C. Neri
1 [ 1

( FUND MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING UNIT
Jackielou H. Garachico Shine Lymiele B. Factor
IT SUPPORT
Faisal A. De Guzman
b. List of major stockholders of the Bank, including nationality, percentage of

stockholdings and voting status

. . Percentage of .
Stockholders Nationality Stockholgings Voting Status
Amang Rodriguez Holdings, Inc. Filipino 34.37% Voting
First Lucky Holdings Corp Filipino 27.25% Voting
Compania de Maria Clara Filipino 27.25% Voting
MMP Investments, Inc. Filipino 9.05% Voting
LandBank of the Philippines Filipino 2.07% Voting
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C.

List and description of products and services offered:

BANGKO no
KABUHAYAN

PRODUCTS

REGULAR / IWHCRO JAIMANG SAVINGS ACCOUNI

* QpeningBalance “Fhp 200,00
* Maintaining Balan<e of Phy 200,00

* Intereat BoaringBalance of Php 500,00
* 0.502% Inkerort por annum

A. TIME DEPOSIT

Effective October 31, 2022

lntorast rate ! Tarms {Por Annsm
Amount 30 days | 60 days | 90 days | 365 days (1yr)
100,001.00 to 500,000.00 2.375% 2.625% 2.875% 3.125%
500,001.00 t0 1,000,00000 |  3.625% 3.750% 3.875% 4.00%
Amount 2 YEARS |3 YEARS |4 YEARS
500,000,000 1000000.00 I 4 1257, 4.250 46257

B. ALAY 5A KABUHAYAN

[Minimum Placement 500,000.00 51252 |

Syrs and 1day |

AGTES:

1. Interest Rates may change from time to time,
2. Deposit iz insured with PDIC up to maximum amount of P 500,000.00 per depositor.
3. All future state laws that dizallows tax exemption on ALAY SA KABUHAYAN, 3
special time deposit for Sycars and 1 day must be followed and implemented and that
all withholding taxes shall be charged to the respective deposzitor.
4. In caze of Pre-Termination of all Reqular Time Depositz and Alay 53 Kabuhayan, the interest rate
of Savingz Deposzit shall be applied.
5. The amount of P100,001.00 up to P433,933.00 have been prezented in order to accommodate some ¢
bank's valued clients.

A. AMANG Microfinance Loan - these loans are up to PhP 150,000.

PURPOSE : Loans can be provided to any entrepreneur for additional working capital.
Loan Amount : (subject to repayment capacity evaluation)
Minimum : Php 30,000.00
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Maximum : Php 150,000.00

Loan Term . (subject to repayment capacity evaluation)
Minimum of 3 months

Maximum of 6 months

NOTE:
- All borrowers are covered with Loan Insurance.
- The account officers should do re-cash flow evaluation every renewal.
- Turn-around time is five (5) working days for new borrower; within 2 days for repeat borrower.

INTEREST RATE AND OTHER CHARGES
e Interest rate and other charges must account for competition and the bank’s own financial
objectives.
e  Penalty charge should be high enough to discourage late payment and to cover additional
collection expenses

Interest rate:
e  3.95% per month, diminishing balance
e  Client will issue post-dated checks
e Payments are auto-debited from savings account with Banco Rodriguez
e  Client will bring payments directly to the bank (over the counter payment
e Client will deposit payment thru Deposit Reference (Dep.Ref.) Facility e.g. Bank of the Philippine
Islands (BPI) and Banco de Oro (BDO).

Processing Fee:
e 3.0% for every loan availment (deducted upfront) for all repeat accounts more than 3 months

Other Charges: (deducted upfront)
e Documentary Stamp Tax : Php1.50 for every Php 200 of loan principal
e Mortgage Redemption Insurance/Other Risk Mitigation Insurance : Php1.25 for every Php1,000
of loan principal, every month
e Notarial fee : Php200

Penalties:

e 5% per month of loan amortization (principal and interest)

e 10% of principal and interest when loan becomes past due maturity (based on outstanding loan
balance)

e  Php500 for bouncing checks and for checks that are put on hold that are not replaced with cash
on the same day

e Reduction in amount of repeat loan / no loan

e (lient’s name will be included in the negative list that the bank will regularly submit to the
Negative File Information System of the BAP Credit Bureau.

FREQUENCY OF PAYMENT
The more frequent and smaller the amortization payments, the easier they are for the clients
to make. This should be balanced against costs.
e Equal weekly payments
e Forloans with weekly amortization, loan term (number of days) must be divisible by 7.

Payments will start as follows:

Loan with WEEKLY payments: First installment shall be due the following week, which is on the
7t day after the release of the loan. (For example, if a loan is released on a Monday, the collection or
anniversary day falls on a Monday)

MODE OF COLLECTION OR PAYMENT
1. Client will deposit payment thru Dep. Ref. (BDO and BPI)
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2. Remitted by the client to the bank
3. Auto-debit from savings account with the Bank
» Issuance of post-dated checks

B. AMANG Microfinance Loan Plus - these loans are from PhP 150,001.00 to PhP 300,000.00

PURPOSE: Loans can be provided to any entrepreneur for additional working capital.

Loan Amount : (subject to repayment capacity evaluation)
Minimum : Php 150,001.00
Maximum : Php 300,000.00

Minimum of 3 months
Maximum of 6 months

NOTE:
- All borrowers are covered with Loan Insurance.
- The account officers should do re-cash flow evaluation every renewal.
- Turn-around time is five (5) working days for new borrower; within 2 days for repeat borrower.

INTEREST RATE AND OTHER CHARGES

e Interest rate and other charges must account for competition and the bank’s own
financial objectives.

e Penalty charge should be high enough to discourage late payment and to cover
additional collection expenses

Interest rate:
e 3.95% per month, diminishing balance:
e  Client will issue post-dated checks
e Payments are auto-debited from savings account with Bangko ng Kabuhayan
e Client will bring payments directly to the bank (over the counter payment)

Processing fee:
e 3.0% for every loan availment (deducted upfront) for all repeat accounts more than 3 months

Other Charges: (deducted upfront)
e Documentary Stamp Tax : Php1.50 for every Php200 of loan principal
e  Mortgage Redemption Insurance/Other Risk Mitigation Insurance : Php1.25 for every Php1,000
of loan principal, every month
e Notarial fee : Php200

Penalties:

e 5% per month of loan amortization (principal and interest)

e 10% of principal and interest when loan becomes past due maturity (based on outstanding loan
balance)

e  Php500 for bouncing checks and for checks that are put on hold that are not replaced with cash
on the same day

e Reduction in amount of repeat loan / no loan

e (lient’s name will be included in the negative list that the bank will regularly submit to the
Negative File Information System of the BAP Credit Bureau.

FREQUENCY OF PAYMENT

The more frequent and smaller the amortization payments, the easier they are for the clients to make.
This should be balanced against costs.
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Equal weekly payments

For loans with weekly amortization, loan term (number of days) must be divisible by 7.
Payments will start as follows:

Loan with WEEKLY payments: First installment shall be due the following week, which is on the
7™ day after the release of the loan. (For example, if a loan is released on a Monday, the collection or
anniversary day falls on a Monday)

MODE OF COLLECTION OR PAYMENT

Remitted by the client to the bank

Auto-debit from savings account with the Bank

» Issuance of post-dated checks

C. Micro+-to Small Entrepreneur Business Loan

Loan Type
Interest Rate
Term of Payment

Acceptable Security

Maximum Loan
Purpose

Past Due Recognition
Lending Approach/Measurement

Years in Business

Business Set-up

Other Terms

Other Bus. Requirements

: CLASSIFIED AS SME

: Maximum of 3.95% per month, diminishing balance.

: Maximum of 12 months, equal monthly payment. With
10% deposit component.

: Real Estate/Vehicle/Equipment and other valuable assets

(unregistered but with pre-signed security document,

registration will be implemented if current account turned

past due or for recommendation of the Loans Head).

:1.0M

: Capital expenditures (acquisition of

Equipment/renovation/construction).

Working capital (specific purchase of inventory/stocks).

: Based on SME policy on past due account.

: Financial Report (Audited optional) or reconstructed

Financial status, using the Banks Client Financial Data Form

(CFDF) format, of the business supported by business

receipts/documents.

: At least 3 profitable years of operation.

: Single proprietorship/partnership/corporation. In case of

single proprietorship spouse of the married registered

owner of the business shall also sign as borrower.

: Insurable collateral shall be covered by appropriate
Insurance policy. Maximum of handling fee of 3% on
principal.

Payment shall be covered by PDC.

: DTI, Mayor’s permit, SEC docs. (barangay permit if loan is

not more than 300,000.00).

D. Micro+S Unsecured / Clean Term Loan

PURPOSE

: The loan can be granted under unsecured / clean term loan provided the

followings are met,
e At least 2 months bank statements (latest) are submitted (or up to 6 months
depending on the assessment on the latest 3 months statements)
e The submitted statements will show an ADB of at least 200,000.00 net of all other term
loan from other banks/financial institutions.

e That the said statements will show very satisfactory cash movement with no single
returned checks regardless of amount.
e That the cash inflow will at least show the pattern of the business sales movement.
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ON LOANABLE AMOUNT UNDER UNSECURED / CLEAN TERM LOAN
e 300,000.00 — if the deposit amount has a net ADB of 150,000.00
e 400,000.00 — If the deposit amount has a net ADB of 200,000.00
e 500,000.00 — if the deposit amount has a net ADB of 250,000.00
INTEREST RATE — ADD-ON RATE MONTHLY

e 6 mos. Payterm—1.5%

o 12 - 1.8%
e 18 -20%
o 24 -2.2%

BANK STATEMENT AND ADB VALIDATION

e  Bank statement submitted shall be directly by the credit support via bank checking
(using the duly signed Letter of Authority & Waiver of Confidentiality).

e No account shall be proposed / approved without the CI report on bank statement
validation.

e The report should specifically state the account ADB and return check transaction.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS
e The account shall be covered with the Statement of Assets and Liabilities notarized by
the borrower and Joint and Solidary Signature (JSS).

e Income Tax Return (with audited financial statement — at least latest year.
e  Business registration.

E. Micro+S Equipment Loan

PURPOSE . The loan is for acquisition, refinancing, reimbursement of business
equipment (vehicle-trucks, passenger cars/vans, machine, tools) to be
used/being used in the day-to-day business operation of Micro+S clients.

MAXIMUM

AMOUNT OF

LOAN : Php 1,000,000.00

LOANABLE AMOUNT AND TERMS OF PAYMENT
On Passenger Vehicles

AGE LOANABLE RATE TERM OF PAY INTEREST RATE
Brand New to 3 years old 80% Max of 3 years Max of 1.2% add-on
4 — 6 years old 70% Max of 2 years Max of 1.5% add-on
7 —10 years old 60% Max of 1 year Max of 1.8% add-on

On Trucks / Machines / Tools

AGE LOANABLE RATE TERM OF PAY INTEREST RATE
Brand New/Recon to 3
years old 80% Max of 3 years Max of 1.5% add-on
4 — 6 years old 70% Max of 2 years Max of 1.8% add-on
7 — 10 years old 60% Max of 1 year Max of 2.0% add-on
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OTHER TERMS:

- Valuation is based on the appraised value of the Bank

- Service charge is at maximum of 3% plus annotation fee and comprehensive insurance

- Chattel is subject to mortgage annotation upon documentary requirement completion.

- Vehicle should be registered under the name of the borrower and shall be subject to
validation of Credit Support Department.

- Machine should have a proof of purchase under the name of the borrower.

- Proceeds of the loan shall be paid directly to the supplier in case of acquisition. In case of
refinancing, the bank will pay the balance of the loan directly to the existing financing firm
and the excess is released to the borrower.

- Forloanreimbursement, the proceeds shall be released to the borrowers account provided
however that equipment/vehicle purchased is not more than 6 months from the date of
acquisition.

- Any changes in the terms and conditions for the proposed account, shall be subject to
credit committee approval.

e Small Medium Enterprise Loan (SME)
e Rediscounting Line for Existing Micro+S and SME Loan Clients

F. REDISCOUNTING LINE FOR EXISTING MICRO+S AND SME LOAN CLIENTS

PURPOSE : To extend credit line to loan borrowers via rediscounting of PDC
collections from the borrowers’ trade clients.

CREDIT POLICY:

e The product is only available to existing clients of the bank, Micro+ and SME
with good credit outstanding.

e Only for clients with existing loans and with good collateral where the loans
are backed up with cross-default provision document.

e Term — One year credit line available via maximum 90 days PN.

e Interest Rate — Thirty-six percent (36%) per annum diminishing, deducted in
advance.

e Maximum credit line — 500,000.00

Acceptable PDCs:
e The checks to be rediscounted should only be up to 90days post dated
e No personal check is accepted for rediscounting. Checks should be under
company name.

- Maximum loanable amount of PDC is 80%.

- The borrower has to pay off within 24 hours any returned check. PDCs with history of
return can no longer be rediscounted on the next credit availment.

- The PDCs shall be deposited to the borrower’s savings account with the bank,
restricted, and amount of cleared checks shall be automatically applied to the loan
principal.

- Excess from rediscounted checks credited to the savings account can only be
withdrawn by the borrowers upon full settlement of the availed credit line.

- The Credit Support department shall conduct a trade check validation after seeking the
borrowers’ concurrence to allow the Bank to verify with their trade client (who issued
the check) regarding check issued.
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d. Bank website

» The BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN WEBSITE (www.bangkongkabuhayan.com) was
launched in May 2019 in time for the formal launch of our new corporate
name: Bangko Ng Kabuhayan (A Rural Bank), Inc. It serves as the window of
the public about relevant information concerning the Bank, with the following
sections:

e HOME PAGE — snapshot of the basic information about the Bank
such as company history, products and services, and contact
information. It also provides links to the Bank Website’s Terms of
Use and Privacy Policy

e ABOUT US — tells the visitors about the Bank’s milestones and
what the business is all about

e PRODUCTS AND SERVICES — details the Bank’s loan products and
deposits

e HAPPENINGS — important events and developments about the
Bank, its employees, programs, and relevant events and feature
articles concerning the industry and those that may benefit our
clients

e CLIENT TESTIMONIALS — monthly feature on loyal clients

e CONTACT US - contact information about the Bank’s offices as
well as job opportunities. It also provides the venue for visitors to
send us a message

o  WIDGETS — Link to our Facebook page

e  PRIVACY POLICY

e. List of Banking units (such as branches, extension offices, other Banking offices, and
representative offices) domestic and abroad including address and contact details
(optional for Banks that disclose these kinds of information in their websites).
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http://www.bangkongkabuhayan.com/

PARKING

Antipolo Branch

BRANCH ADDRESS CONTACT NO.
G/F, Rayle Bldg., #52 Dr. Sixto
Head Office Antonio Avenue, Kapasigan, | 028643-4381 / 83
Pasig City
Antipolo Branch 83 . Clrcgmferentlal Road, 028571-1284
Antipolo City

San Mateo Branch

Unit 2 RNC Gen. Luna St.,
Ampid |, San Mateo, Rizal

0917-505-5298

VII. 2022 Audited Financial Statements (AFS) with Auditor’s Opinion:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Sharehobders and the Bosrd of Directors
Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (& Rural Bank) Inc.
(formeny Rodriguez Rursl Bank. fnc.)
Ground Floor Rayle Buikding

Mo 52, Dr. So Antonio Avenue
HKapasigan, Pasig City

Report on the Auwdit of the Financlal Statements
i

We have audited the financial statements of Bangko ng Kebuhayan, (A Rural Bank) Inc.
(formery Rodnguez Rural Bamk, inc.) (the “Bank”), which comprise the statemenis of financial position as at
December 31, 2023 and 2021, and the staternents of comprehensive income (loss). statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a swmmany
of significant accounting polices.

In our opdndom, the accompanying financial staternents present fairdy. in all material respects, the financial position
of the Bank as at Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and e cash fows for the years then
endad in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), as modified by the applicaton of the
financial reporting relief issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipines (BSF) and approved by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) in reaponse to the COVID-19 pandemic, as desonibed in Mote 2 1o the financial
atatamenis.

We conducted our swdits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our reaponsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibiites for the Awdait of the Finsncial Statements
section of our report ‘We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accowntants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit
of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in sccordance

with thesa requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphaais of Matter

We draw attention to Mote 2 1o the financial staternents, which indicate that the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with PFRS, a3 modified by the application of the financial reparting relief isswed by the BSP
and approved by the SEC in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The relief covers transactionsfevents for the
year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The impacts of the application of the financial reporting relief on the
2022 and 2021 financial statements are discussed in detail in Mote 2. Owr opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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FResponsibitbes of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentason of the financial statements in accordance with
FFRS, and for such internal control &8 management determines s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
staternents that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or emor.

in preparing the financisl statements, mansgemant is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability o continue &s &
going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters relabed to going concern and using the going concern basis of
scoounting unless management either intends o lquidate the Bank or to cesse operations, or has no realistic
alternabive but to G &0,

Those changed with govemnance are responsible for oversesing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Audifor's Responsibilifies for the Awdl of the Financlal Statements

Owr objectives are io obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to frewd or ermor, and io issue an auditor's regort that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of asswrance, but is not 8 guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with P54 will always detect 3 maternial misstaternent when it exdsts. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or ermor and
are considered meteral if, individually or in the apgregste, these could reasonably be expecited to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

Aa part of an sudit in accordance with PSA_ we exercise profesaional judgment and maintsin professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We alsoc

= |dentify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due io fraud or ermaor,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and obtain awdit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate o provide 8 basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from
fraud i higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, inlenbional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

= (Oibtain an understanding of internal controd relevant to the gudit in order to design sudit procedures that are
approprigte in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank's internal control_

* Evaluate the appropriateness of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, besed
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncerainty exists related o events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as & going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncartainty exists, we are required to draw gtenton in cwr auditor's report to the related discosures in the
financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Ouwr conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or condtions meay
cause the Bank to cesse to continue a5 a going concerm.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the wnderlying transachions and events in & manner that
achiewes fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope snd timing
of the audit and significant swdit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intzmal control that we identify during
ol Easdil

Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Owar sudits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statemeanis taken a3 8 whode.
As dischosed in Mote 29 to the financial statements, the Bank presented the supplementary information required by
the Buresu of Internal Revenue (BIR) under Revenwe Regulations (RR) Mo, 15-2010 and RR No. 34-2020 in a
supplementary schedule filed separately from the basic financial statements. The supplementary information for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, as disclosed in Mote 30 to the financial statements. i3 reguired by the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipings (BSP) under Appendix 55 of Section 174 of the Maneal Reguiations for Banks,
amended by BSP Circular Mo. 1074, Such supplementary information required by the BIR and the BSP is the
reaponsdbility of management and ks not required part of the basic financial staternents prepared in accordance with
FFRS; it s neither a required disclosure under the Revised Securiies Regulation Code Rule &8 of the SEC. The
supplementary information has been subjected to the audiing procedures applied inowr sedits of the basic finsncial
staternents. In our opinion, the infermation ks faidy stated in all material respects in relatson 1o the basic finsncial
staternents taken a3 8 whole.

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO.

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001682-015-2022. issued on October 14, 202,

effective until Oichober 13, 2025
SEC Accreditation Mo, 108297-5EC, Group A, issued on February 27, 2020,

effective for the awdit of 2019 1 2023 finandal statements of SEC covered institutions
BSP Accreditation Mo, 109287-B5F, Group A, issved on February 28, 2020,

effectve for the swdit of 3019 to 2023 financial statements of BSP covered institutions
FTR Mo, 9585744, lmsued on January 3. 2023, Makati City

April 27, 2023
Maksti City
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.

{formerly Rodriguez Rural Bank, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Note 2022 2021
ASSETS
Cash and other cash items 5 P4,979,648 P2 682,394
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (4] 5,190,872 388,225
Due from other banks 7 50,314 477 64,067,073
Investments at amortized cost 8 1,445,798 1,445 798
Loans and other receivables, net 2] 172,943,664 154,056,848
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, nat 10 4,655,262 5,349 974
Investment properties, nat 11 477,816 92007
Right-of-use assets, net 23 4,329,155 3,903,746
Retirement asset, net 22 845,966 -
Other assets 12 2,073,871 1,519,439
P247,256,529 233,505,504
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposit liabilities 14 P145,841,648 149 241,249
Bills payable 15 5,000,000 .
Accounts payable and other liabilities 16 8,186,724 5,534 493
Retirement liability 22 - 1,712,790
Lease liabilities 23 4,951,841 4,039 405
Redeemable preferred shares 17 3,478,800 3,478,800
Income tax payable 21 - 43,157
Total Liabilities P167,459,013 164,048 894
Equity
Share capital 18 160,082,208 153,556,108
Deficit (80,987,075) (83,419,471
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 22 702,383 (681.027)
Total Equity P79,797,516 69,455,610
P247,256,529 233,505,504

See Notes to the Financial Statermeants.
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.

{formerly Rodriguez Rural Bank, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Note 2022 2021
INTEREST INCOME
On loans and other receivables ] P38,908,817 34,089,259
On bank deposits and investment securilies 7 177,239 374,400
39,086,056 34 463 658
INTEREST EXPENSE
On deposit liabilities 14 (5,056,825) (3,683,191)
On lease liabilites 23 (T05,700) (407.231)
On bills payable 15 - (208,167)
(5,762,525) (4.306.589)
MNET INTEREST INCOME 33,323,531 30,157,070
Provision for impairment and expected credit losses 13 (3,491,271) (8,705,221)
MET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT AND EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES P29,832,260 21,451,849
Other operating income 19 11,449,895 9,480,148
Other operating expenses 20 (38,713,583) (36,2684 .623)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 2,568,572 (5,352.626)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 21 (136,176) {150.819)
MNET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2,432,396 (5,503.445)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltem that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on retirement liability 22 1,383,410 -
Effect of change in effective tax rate on
cumulative remeasurement loss 22 - (45.402)
P3,815,806 (P5,548.847)

See Nofes o the Financial Statementis.




BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.
(formerly Rodriguez Rural Bank, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Note 2022 2021
SHARE CAPITAL 18
As at January 1 P153,556,108 #1448 956,008
Shares issued during the year 6,526,100 4 600,100
As at December 31 160,082,208 153,556,108
DEFICIT
As at January 1 (83,419,471) (77.,916,026)
Met income (loss) for the year 2,432,396 (5,503,445)
As at December 31 (80,987,075) (83,419.471)
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)

As at January 1 (681,027) (635,625)
Remeasurement gain on retirement liability 22 1,383,410 -
Effect of change in effective tax rate on

cumulative remeasurement loss 22 - (45,402)
As at December 31 702,383 (681,027)

P79,797,516 69,455 610

See Motes fo the Financial Statements.
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.
{formerly Rodriguez Rural Bank, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Nofes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before |ax P2 BER ET2 {5,352 624)
Adjusiments Tor
Depreciation and amarizalion 10,20, 23 4,304 178 4,400 347
Pravision for impairment and expacied credil losses i3 3,491,211 8,705,221
Gain on sale of mvestmenl propearies 979 {1,984, 228) .
Interast axpense on lease iabiiies 23 TOSE, 100 407,231
Reliremen benefil cost 0,22 431 281 GAE.021
Oiber income from lease modification 19,23 - (BB3,055)
Effect of change in affecive lax rale on
cumulalive remeasuremen loss 2 = (45 402
Dperaling income belore changes in operaling assels
and liabiliies 8 606, T44 8,127 833
Decreass (increase) inc
Loans and olher rsceivables (20,829, 671) (37, 487,341)
Oiher assels 216,019 (85,035)
Increase {decrease] inc
Deposil liabiities (3,399, 501) B8, 580,020
Accounts payable and olher liabilities 2 682 231 1,404 860
Cash generated fram [used for) operations (11,784,278 38 BA0, 137
Increase in relirement asset 2 {1,608, 59T) {4,304)
Income taxes paid 21 [TEE E31) (264,897}
HET CASH PROVIDED BY (UISED INj OFERATING ACTIVITIES (14,116 S08) 38 570 566
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguisiion af bank premises, furmiture, fictures and equipment 0 [985,00E) (1,B68,656)
Procesads from sale of mvestment properties ] 84, .
Proceeds from dispasal of ransportalion eguipment i0 = 202 584
MNET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (938, raE) (1,576,071
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from issuance ol sharss i8 &, 826,100 4 600,100
Procesads fram bills payable 15 8,000,000 .
Paymenls af lsase Eabiifes 73 {3,127, 183) [3,085,751)
Paymenis al bils payable (] - [4,571,5TE)
HET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 8,308, 907 (3,455 206
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (B B52,EDE) 53,530,650
CASH AT JANUARY 1 ET.137 652 53,596 042
CASH AT DECEMBER 31 0, 454,507 &7, 137,692
CASH CONSIST OF:
Cash and other cash ems -] P 970, B4 P2 G2 104
Due from Bangko Senbral ng Pilipinas [} 6,180 872 FH8 225
Due from other banks 7 50,314, 477 64,087,073
PE0 454 99T PE7, 137 692
OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Inberest recsived PIB. 413 4TE P28 634 424
Inberes! paid P 359 4TE P3 125 050

Sae Nates fo the Financial Stafemants
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BANGKO NG KABUHAYAN, (A RURAL BANK) INC.
{formerly Rodriguez Rural Bank, Inc.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Repaorting Entity

Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (& Rural Bank) Inc. (formerdy Rodrguer Rwal Bank inc) (the “Bank") was
regiaterad with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Movernber 12, 1952 per SEC Registration
Mo 7275 to operate as & rural bank. The Bark's primary purpose ks to carmy and engage in the business of
extending rural credit to small farmers and tenants and to deserving rural industries or enterprises; and to have
and exercise all authority and power, and b do and perform all acts and to ransact and conduct all business
which may legally be had or done by rural banks organized wnder and in sccordance with the “Rural Banks
Act”, s it exists or may be amended, and to do all other things incident thereto and necessary and proper in
connection with said purposa within which auch territory as may be detemmined by the Monetary Board of the
Central Bank of the Philippines.

The Bank operates a8 a nral bank and provides services such as deposit taking, bending, and microfinance
senices through a network of three (3) banking units - San Mateo and Anbipodo, Rizal and Pasig City as the
ead office.

The registered office address and primary place of business of the Bank is at Grownd Floor Rayle Bullding,
M. 52 Dr. Sixto Antonio Avenue, Kapasigan, Pasig City.

The Bank & 35.76% owned by Amang Rodriguez Hobdings, Inc., an entity incorporated in the Philippines. Its
regiatersd address @ at 30d Floor Pancake House Center, Pasong Tamo Extension, Makati City. Hs ultimate
parent i First Lucky Holdings Corp., also an entity incorporated in the Philippines, located at 2259 Pasong
Tarmo Extension, Makati City.

On September 28, 3001, by & majonty vote of the Board of Directors (BOD) and by the vote of the sharsholders
owming of representing at keast two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock, the emendment of the Articke IV of
the Bank's Articles of Incorporation was approved o extend the corporate life of the Bank, which expired on
Movember 12, 2002, for another 50 years or up o Movernber 12, 2051. The Amended Articles of Inconporation
was approved by the SEC and the Certificate of Filing of Amendad Articles of Inconporation was issued on
Juby 23, 2013

On April 26, 2015, the Bank's shareholders resalved o change the Bank's name from Rodriguez Rural Bank,
Inz. to Banghko ng Kabuhayan, (A Rural Bank), Inc. The amendment to the Artidkes of Incorporation and By-
Laws in relaton to the change of Bank's name was approved by Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF) on
March 6, 2018.

On October 7, 3018, SEC approved the Bank's application for change in neme from Rodriguez Rural Bank,
Inc. o Bangko ng Kabuhayan, (A Rural Bank), Inc.

The sccompanying financial statements of the Bank were approved and authorized for isswance by the Bank's
BOD on April 27, 2023,

Basls of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The sccompanying financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Repaorting
Standards (PFRS), as modified by the application of the financial reporting relief issued by the BSF and
approved by the SEC in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. PFRS are based on International Finencial
Reparting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (lASE). PFRS consist of PFRS,
Philippine  Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philipping Interpretations issued by the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards Coundll (FRSC).
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On March 14, 2020, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (B5P), ssued Memorandurn Mo. 20230-008 Regulatory Relief
for BSFls affected by the Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID-183). Among the regulatory relief mseed in the
memaorandum. the Bank applied for staggered booking of allowanca for credit losses over a8 maxmum period
of five (5) years in 2021, On April 20, 2021, the BSP approved the Bank's application to avail the financial
reporting relief of staggered booking of allowance for credit losses of certain loan accounts over a maximum
penicd of three (3} years.

a. The impact on the affectad financial statement line items as at and for the year ended Decamber 31, 2022
and 2021 are as follow:

2022
Armount Amount
without relief Impact of relief with relief
Loains and ofher receivables, net 172,207 346 ™736,318 ™172.843,664
Allowance for credit koases 24,088,820 (T36,318) 23,352 502
Provision for credit losses 4,227 580 (736,318) 348121
Diaficit {80,250, 757) (T36,318) (80.887,075)
Unrecognized deferrad tax assets, net 7078577 (164,081) 6804 496
2021
Arnaunt Amourit
without relief Impact of relief with relief
Loans and ofher receivablas, net 152,452 167 P1.604 581 ™154.056,848
Allowance for credit loases 21,464 327 {1.604,681) 19,850, 646
Provision for credit losses 10,308,802 (1.604,681) a.ro5,21
Diaficit BE 024 152 {1.604,681) 33.416,471
Unrecognized deferrad tax assets, net 8,587 812 (401,170) 8,166,642

b. Balance of allowance recognized or amortized for the year and balance of unrecognized allvwance as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 are a3 follow:

2022 2021
Unrecognized aliowance P1,604,681 2 GE3 455
Recognized for the yesr |868.363) (1,078,774}
At Decamber 31 PT36,318 1,604,681

Basis of Measurement
The financial staternents of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as disclosed in

the sccounting policies that follow.

Functional and Preseniation Cumency
The financial statements are presanted in Philippine Peso (™), which is the funciionsl cumency of the Bank_ All
values are rounded off to the nearest Peso.

Significant Accounting Policles

Adoption of Amended PFRS
The accounting policies sdopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, excapt for the adoption
of the following new and amended PFRS which the Bank adopted effective for annual pericds beginning om or

after January 1, 2022

= Amendments to PAS 16. Properdy, Planf and Bgquipment — Froceeds before fmdended Uszs. The
amendments prohibit the entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and eguipmeant,
any proceeds of the sale tems produced while bringing that assst to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendead by the Management. Instesd, the antity recognizes
such sales proceads and any related costs in the profit or koss.

These amendments had no impact on the financial staterments of the Bank.

46




= Annusl Improvements 1o PFRS Standands 2018 — 2020 Cyde

o Amendments io PFRS 9, Financisl instruments - Fees in the 10 Per Cent’ Test for Derecognition of
Financial Lishifbes. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the
“U0 percent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of PFRS 9 in sasessing whether to derecognize a financial
liability. An entity iIncludes only fess paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lemder,
including fees paid or recedved by either the entity or the lender on the ofher's behaif.

o Amendrments to PFRS 16, Leazes - Legse Incentives. The amendment to llusirative Exampls 13
scoompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example the illustraion of the resmbursement of keasahold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arse because of how lease incentives are llusiratad in that exarmple.

Amended PFRS lsued but Mot Yet Effectve
Relevant amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended Decamber 31, 2022 and have not baen
aipplied in preparing the financial staternents are surmmarized below.

Effective for anmeal pericds beginning on or afier Janueary 1, 3023:

=  Amendments to PAS 1, Preseniation of Financial Statements - Clazsifcation of Lisbiites as Cument or
MNon-cument. The amendments to PAS 1 specify the reguirements for clasaifying current and noncument
lizbilitizs. The amendments will clarify that a nght 1o defer must exist st the end of reporting period and the
classification is unaffectad by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its defemral ight. The issuance of
ameandments was deferred wntil January 1. 2023, as a result of COVID-18 pandemic.

=  Amendmenis to PAS 1, Prezantation of Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2. Wsking
Matensity Judgements - Discioswne iniiative - Accounting Podcies. The amendments aim to help entities
provide accounting policy disclosuras that are more useful by (a) replacing the reguirement for entities 1o
disciose their 'significant’ accounting policies with a requirement 1o disciose their ‘material’ accounting
podicies, and (b) Adding guidance on how entiies apply the concept of materiality in making decisions
abourt accounting policy disclosures.

= Amendments o PAS 12, income Taxes — Defermed Tax Relsted to Assets smd Liabiities from 8 Single
Transsction. The amendments reguire companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that, on indtial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of texable and deductible tamporary differences. The amendments
will typically apply to wansactions such as leases for the lessee and decommissioning obdigations.
Acconding o the amended guidance, & temporany difference that anses on initisl recognition of an ssset
of lisbiity is not subject o the inftial recognition exermption if that transaction gave rse 1o egual amournts
of taxable and dedueciible temporary differences.

* Amendmenis o PAS 8, Accounfing Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors - Definition of
Accounfimg Esfimares. The amendments clanfy the distinction betwesn changes in accounting estimates
aind changes in accounting polickes and e correction of ermors. The amended standard also danfiss that
the effects on an accounting estimate of & change in an input or & change In a messurement technique
are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the comecton of prior perod emors. The
prewvious definition of a change in accownting estimate specified that changes in sccounting estimates may
result from new information or new developments. Therefora, such changes are not comections of emors.

Under prevailing circemstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended FFRS i not expected 1o
have any material affect on the financial staternents of the Bank.

Fi ; . ial .

Diate of Recognifion. The Bank recognizes & financial asset or a finencial lisbdity in the statement of financial
[peosition wihen it becomes a party o the contractual provisions of & financial instremeant. In the case of a regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settierment
date sccounting.

Initisl Recognifion amd Messwement. Financial instruments are recognized initally at fair valee, which s the
fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asaet) or received (in case of & liability). The indtial
measuwrement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit or loss [FWPL),
includes ransaction cost.

47




‘Tray 1° Difference. Where the transacBon in 3 non-active market is different from the fair vaiue of other
obsensable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a walestion technigue whose
varables inchede only data from observable market, the Bank recognizes the difference bebween the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1% difference) in profit or keas. in cases where there i3 no cbservable
data on incaption, the Bank deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair valee and recognizes "Day
1° difference in profit or kess wihen the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For
each transsction, the Bank determines the appropriata method of recognizing the “Day 1° difference.

Clgssificstion. The Bank classifies its financial assets &t inital recognition under the following catagories: (a)
financial assets at FWPL, (b) financial assats st amortized cost and (¢} financial asssis st fadr valwe through
cither comprehersive incoms (FPVYOCI). Financial liabilites, on the other hand, are classified as either financial
lizbilities &t FWVPL or financial liabilities at amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrurment langely
depends on the Bank's business model and its contrecteal cash flow characiensbics.

Financlal Asssts and Lishiiiies af FWPL. Financial assets and kabilites at FWPL are either classified as heaid for
trading of designated at FYPL. A financial instrurment is clessified as held for rading if it meets ether of the
folicsing conditions:

= litis acquired or incumed peincipally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing i in the near temm;

= on initial recognition. it is part of & portfolio of identified financial instrements that are managed together and
for which there ks evidence of a recent actual patern of short-temmn profit-iaking; or

= it & denvative (eacept for & dervative that is & financial guarantese contract of a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments wiich the Bank had mot imevocably elected 1o classify at FWVOCH at initial
recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows are not “solely for payment of principal
and interast’ (SPP1) assessed at initial recognition of the assets, or which ane not held within 8 business model
whose objective i either io collect contractusl cash flows, or to both collect contrectual cash fiows and sall.

The Bank may, &t initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial Mability meeting the criteria o be
classified at amortized cost or st FWOC, a8 & financial asset or financial lisbdity at FVPL, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arse from measuring fhese assets or liablities.

Aftar initial recognition, financial assets at FWVPL and held for trading financial liabilites are subsequeanthy measurad
&t fair value. Unrealized gains or lossss ansing from the fair valuation of financial assets &t PYPL and heid for
trading financial liabilites are recognized in profit or losa.

For financial Eabilities designated at FWPL wunder the fair value option, the amaount of change in fair valee that s
sifributable 1o chenges in e credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehansive income (rather than
in profitor loss), unless this creates an accounting mismaich. Amounts presenied in other comprehensie INcome
are mot subsequently ransfemed to profit or loss.

Az at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank does not have financial assets and liabilites at FYPL

Financial Assefs af Amortized Cost. Financial assets shall be measurad at amorized cosat if both of the following
conditiong are met-

= the financial asset is held within & business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in onder 1o
collect contractueal cash flows; and

= the contrachial terma of the financial asset give nise, on specified dates, 10 cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amaount outstanding.

After initial recognition. financial assets at amortized cost are subsaquently measured at amortized cost wsing
the effective interest methoed, less allowance for ECL, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into sccownt
any discount or premiurmn on acguisiton and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR).
Gaing and lossas are recognized in profit or kess when the financial assets are derecognized and through
amortizalion process. Financial assets at amorfized cost are included wnder curment assets if realizabiity or
collectability is within 12 months after the reporting period. Othensise, these ane classified as noncurrent assets.

As at Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank's cash and other cash dems, due from BSP, due from other
anks, investments at amortized cost, lcans and other recaivables, petty cash fund and deposits are included
under this category (see Motes 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 12).
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Financial Asssts at FWOCIH For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow charactenistic and are not
designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assats shall be measured at PWYOCH if both of the
following conditions are met:

= the financial asset s held within & business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash fows and selling the financial assets; and

= the contractual teems of the financial asset give rse, on specified dates, 1o cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount cutstanding.

For equity instruments, the Bank may imevocably designate the financial aasat to be measured at FWOC! in casa
the abowve conditions ane not met.

Financial sssets gt FVOCI are initially measured st fair value plus transaction costs. After initial recognition,
interast income (calculated using the effective intereat rate method), foresgn currency gains or losses and
impairment lcases of dabt instruments measured at FWVOCH are recognized directly in profit or loss. 'When the
financial saset is derecognized, the cumulative gaing or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified
from equity to profit or boss as a reclassification adjustment.

Dividends from equity instrements hedd at PWOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right o recedve
paymment is established, unless the dividend cleary represents a recovery of pant of the cost of the investment.
Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or kosses from eguity instruments ane recagnized in OCI
and presented in the equity section of the staterments of financial position. These fair value changes ara
recognized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or less in subseguent penods.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank does not have financial assats at FYOCI

Financial Liahiiites at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categonzed as financial liabliies at amortized
cost when the substance of the confracteal arangement resulls in the Bank having an obligation either 1o
deliver cash or ancther financial asast to the holder, or to settle the oblgation other than by the exchange of a
fized amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of it own equity instruments.

These financial liabllities are initially recognized at fair value less any directty atiributable ransaction costs.
After initiad recognition, these financial kabiities are subsaequently measwred at amortized cost wsing the
effective interest method. Amontized cost ks calculated by taking into account any discownt of premium on the
m=we and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. Gaing and losses ame recognized in profit or loas when the
lizhilities are derecognized or through the amortization process.

Az at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank's deposit liabilites, accounts payable and other liabilites
{exchuding statutory liabiities), bills payable and redeemabde preferred shares are included under this category
{zee Notes 14, 15, 16 and 17).

Deposit liabilities are recognized initially at fair valee and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
saftlement payments.

Prefemaed share is classified as equity if itis non-redeamable, or redesmable ondy at the Bank's option and any
dividends thereon are discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognized &s distributions within equity.

Prefemed share is dassified as a liability if it s redeemable on a specific date or at the aption of the sharehobder,

or if the dividend payments are not discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognized as financing expense in
profit or loss as recenved.

Reclasaificafion. The Bank reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model
for managing those financial asasts. The reclassification ks applied prospectively from the first dey of the first
regorting period following the change in the business model (reclassification dats).

For a financial saset reclassified out of the financial sssets at amortized cost category 1o financial assets at
FWPL. any gain or loss arising from the difference betwesn the previous amortized cost of the financial asset
and fair value is recognized in profit or losa.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial essels st amorized cost category 1o financial sssets at
FWOCI, any gain or logs arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of the financial asset
and fair value is recognized in OCI.
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Faor a financial assst reclassified out of the financial assets at FWPL category to financial assats at amortized
cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross camrying amount.

Far a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category 1o financial assets at amortized
cost, any gain or koss presiously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the new amortized cost and
matunty amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investmeant using the effective
interast method. if the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in
Ol s reciessified from equity to profit or loss.

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed matuwrnity, the gain or loss shall be recognized in profit
of koss when the financial asset s sold or disposad. If the financial asset s subseguently impaired, any previous
gain or koss that hes been recognized in OC ks reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Far a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assats at FVPL category to financial essets at FVOCH, ita
fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross camying amount. Mearmwhile, for a financial asset
reclassified out of the financial assets at FWOCH categony to financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or
kess prewiously recognized in other comprehensive incoms is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustrment at the reclassification date.

Impaimment of Flinancisl Asssts at Amortized Cosf. The adoption of PFRS 9 has changed the Bank's loss
impairment method on financial assets by replacing PAS 393 incurred loss approach with a forwand-booking
expected credit koss (ECL) approach which covers all loans and other debt financial asssts not held at FYPL,
together with loen commitrments and financial guarantes contracts.

Owvenview of the ECL principles

The ECL allwance is based on the credit losses expected to arise on a 12-month duration if there has been
no significant increase in credit risk (SICR) of the financial asset since ongination. Othersize, if a SICR i
obsansed then the ECL estimation ks extendad unil the end of the life of the financial assset. The 12-month BCL
represents the losses that result from default events on a financial assst which may happen within 12 months
after the reporting date. The Lifetime ECL on the other hand represents the losses that result from default
events on a financial assst which may happen over its lfe. Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are
calculated on efther an individual basks or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio
of financial instrurments.

The major portfolios of financial assets identfied upon initial analysis of the Bank's credit exposure are loan
recaivables and other receivables. Loan receivables may be availed by specific individuals, corporations or
oiganizations. Henca, these portfolios can be further segmented to commercial and conswumer portfolics. After
segmentation, financial assets are grouped into Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3 &3 described below.

Drefinition of "defauwl” smd “cune”

The Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit impained,
in 8l cases when the bormower becomes 31 days past due on ks contractual payments. As a part of a gualitative
aasesament of whether a customer is in default, the Bank slso considers a variety of instances that may indicate
undikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in
treating the customer as defaulted. An instrument is considered to be no longer in default (Le. to have curaed)
when it no longer meets any of the default criteria and has eshibited & satisfactory track recond.

Treaswry exposwres are considered in default upon occurrence of a credit event such as but not limited 1o
bankruptcy of counterparty, restructuring, faihere to pay on agreed setilement date, or request for moraboriem.
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Eignificant increase in creait rizk

In order to determine whether an instrument is subject bo 12-month or Lifetime ECL the Bank sssesses whethar
there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since indtial recagnition. The ciena for determining
whether credit risk has increased significanthy vary by portfolio and include guantitative changes in probabilites
of default and gualitative factors, including & backsiop based on delinguency. The credit risk of & paricular
exposare |5 deemed to have increased significently since initial recognition if, based on the Bank's intemal
credit assesament, the borrower or counterparty is determined to have well-defined oredit weaknesses. These
may inchede adverse trends or developments of financial. managerial, economic or political nature, or &
significant weakness in collateral. Credit weakness may be manifested by unfavorable record or unsatisfaciony
characteristica or may only be potential that desanses mansgement’s choge attention and may lead to significant
losses or may result in collection or liquidation of the cutstanding loan amount 1o be highly improbalble. For
exposures withowt internal credit grades, if confractual payments are more than specified days past due
threshodd, the credit risk is deemed 10 have increased significantly since initial recognition. Days past due are
detarmined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment
has not been recefved. In subseguent reporting periods, if the credit sk of the financisl ssset improves swch
that there is no longer 8 SICR since inital recognition, the Bank shall revert 10 recognizing a 12-month ECL.

Elaging sssesament
For non-credit-impaired financial assets:

= Siage 1 comprises of all non-impaired financial assets which heve not experienced a SICR since indtial
recognition. The Bank recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 finencial assets.

= Stage 2 comprses of all non-impaired finencial asssets which have experienced a SICR =ince indtial
recognition. The Bank recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial assets.

For credit-impaired financisl assata:

Financial assets are dassified as Stage 3 when there s objective evidence of impaiment as a result of one or
more loss events that have occwmed afier initial recognition with & negative impact on the estimated future cash
flows of a financial asset or a portfolio of financial assets. The ECL model requires & ifetime ECL for impaired
financial assets.

Financial asssats that are credit-impaired on initial recognition are classified as purchased or originated credit-
impaired (POCI) assets. These are recorded at fair walue at original recognition and interest income s
subsequently recognized based on a credit adjusted EIR. ECL is only recognized or released to the extent that
there is a subsequent change in the ECLs.

Assesament of ECL on & collective basis

The Bank calculates ECL either on an individesl or & collective basis. The Bank performa collective impairment
by grouping exposures inko smaller homogenous portfolios besed on & combination of bomower and acoount
characteristica. Accounts with simiar risk attributes (e, facility, security, credit rating. months-on-books,
utilization and collateral type, etc.) are pooled together for calculating provisions based on the ECL models.

ECL parameders and methodologies

ECL iz & function of the probability of default (PD), exposure-at-default (EAD), and loss-given detault (LED),
with the timing of the loss also considered, and is estimated by incorporating forward-looking economic
inforrmation and through the use of expenenced credit judgement

The FD represents the likelihood that a credit exposure will not be repaid and will go into defsult in either a 12-
maonth horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual finencial assset is modelled
based on historical data and is estimated based on current market conditions and reasonable and supporable
information sbowt futwre economic conditions. The Bank segmented s credit exposures based on
homogenous risk characteristics and developed & comesponding PO methodology for each portolio. The PD
methodobogy for each relevant portfolio is determined based on the wnderlying nature or characteristic of the
portiolio, beheavior of the accownts and mateniality of the segment as compared to the total portfolio.

EAD consists of the amortized cost and any accrued interest receivable. For off-balance shest and wndreswn
committed amounts, EAD inciedes & credit conversion fector which is an estimate of any further amount to be
drawmn at the time of default
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LED is the amount that may not be recovered in the event of dafault and & modelled based on historicel cash
flow recowery and ressonable and supportable information about fubwre economic condiions, where
appropriate. LED takes into conskderation the amount and guality of any collateral held. The Bank applies &
simpdified ECL approach for s accounts receivables wherein the Bank uses a provisioning matrix that
considers historical changes in the behavior of the portfolio to predict conditions ower the span of a given
obserdation period.

Fonward-inoking infonmsation

The Bank incorporstes forsard-looking information into bath s assessment of whather the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significanty since ds initiad recognition and fs messurement of ECL. A broad
range of forasrd-dooking information are conskdered &5 economic inputs, such as growth of the gross domestic
product, inflation rates, unemployment rates, interest rates and BSF statistical indicators. The inputs and
models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all charactenstics of the market at the date of the
financial staternents. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as termporary
sdjustments when auch differances are significantly material_

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Lisbiibes

Financial Assets. A financial assst (or where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assats) is derecognized when:

the might 1o recaive cash flows from the asset has expired;
the Bank retains the right to recelve cash flows from the financial ssset, but has assumed an obligation 1o
jpary them in full without matenisl delay to a third party under & “pass-theowgh”™ arrangement; or
=  the Bank has transferred s right to recelve cash fiows from the financial asseat and either
{a) has ransferrad substantialhy all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

() h&s neither transfermred nor retained substantially &l the rsks and rewards of the asset. but has
transfermad controd of the assat.

‘When the Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered into & pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantislly sl the risks and rewsrds of
ownership of the financial asset nor ransfemed control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized
to the extent of the Bank's continuing inmvolvement in the financial asset. Continwing imdolvemeant that takes the
formn of a guarantes over the ransferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original canrying amaownt
of the financial assst and the maximum amount of conssderation that the Bank could be reguired to repay.

Finamcial Liahiiites. A financial liability s derecognized when the obligation wnder the labdity is dachanged,
cancelsd or his expired. When an existing financial liability s replaced by another from the same lendar on
substantially different terma, or the terma of an existing kabiity are substantially modified, such an exchange
of modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of & new kabdity, and the
difference in the respective camying amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

A modification s considered substantial if the present value of the cash Sows under the new terms, including
et fees paid of received and discounted using the original EIR, is different by &t least 10% from the discounted
present valee of rarmaining cash flows of the onginal liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability = determined based on its expected cash flows, discounied
using the interest rate at which the Bank could raise debt with similar terms and conditions in the market. The
difference between the camying value of the oniginal labidity and fair valuee of the new liability is recognized in
the staternent of comprehenaive income.

On the ather hand, if the difference does not meast the 10% threshold, the original debt B not extinguishied but
meraly modified. In such case, the carmying amount is sdjusted by the costs or fees paid or received in the
resinsCiuring.

Offsettimgy of Financial Asssts and Lishiiies. Financial assets and financial ksbilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of finencial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offeet the recognized amounts and there is intention to sette on a net basis, or 1o realize the ssset and settie
the liability simultanecusly. This B not generally the cass with master netting agreements, and the relatad
aasets and Babiities are presented gross in the statement of finsncial poaition.
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Cigesfication of Finsncisl fnstrument behwesn Lisbiy snd Equily
A financial instrement is dassified as labidity if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

Deliver cash or another financial aaset to another entity;
Exchange financial asssts or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable o the Bank; or

= Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amownt of cash or another financial assat for
a fixed number of own eguity shares_

If the Bank does not have an unconditional right to avold delivering cash or ancther financial asast to setthe i
contraciueal obligation, the obligation meats the definition of a financial liability.

Prepayments

Prepaymenis represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepaymenis are initially recorded
&3 sssets and messured at the amount of cash peid. Subsequently, these are charged against profit or loss a3
they are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of Bme.

Deposts
Deposits represent payments to kessors and other senvice providers which the Bank expects to realize or
consume beyond twelve (12) moniths after the end of the finencial reporting period.

Bank Premises. Fumiture. Fixheres smnd Equipment

Bank premises, fumitwre, fixtures and eguipment are stated ab cost less sccumulated depreciaton and
amorfizaton, and any mpairment in vales. The inital cost of bank premises, fumitere, fixtures and equipment
consists of the purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and
location fior its intended wae.

Subsequent expenditures incurred after the asset has bean put into operation are capitalized as addiional cost
of the assst when the resuling futwre economic benefit exceeds the originally assessed standard of

performance of the asset. All other subsequent expendiures, such as repairs and maintenance, are recognized
in profit or loss in the period the costs are incurmed.

Renewsls and betterrnents, which improve the onginally sssessed standard of performance, of the propsrty,
are capitalized bo the appropriate propery SCoount.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line method owver the estimated waeful lives of the sssets as follows:

Property classification Estimated waeful life
Furmiture, fodwres and equipment 2 to 10 years
Transportation eguipment 3to 5 years

Lessahold improvements are amortzed over the shorter of the lease tarm and the estimated useful lves of the
improvements of & o 15 years.

Am gesset s depreciated or amortzed when it is avallable for use unil it is derecognized even if during that
peniod e item i bdle. Fully depreciated/smortized assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

The estimated wseful lves, and depreciation and amorfizaton methods are reviewed penoedically to ensure that
the perods and methods of depreciation and amorization are consistent with the expecied patiern of economic
benefits from items of bank premises, fumniture, fidures and eguipment.
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If there & an indication that there has been a significant change in the estimated usaful life of an assst, the
depreciation or amortization of the assat is revised prospectively 1o reflect the new expectation.

An asset's camying amount is writhen down immediately to s recoverable amount if it i greater than ks
estimated recoverable amount.

When asseis are retired or othersise disposed of the cost and related accurmdated depreciation or
amortizaton and any impeimment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss &nising
from the disposal, determined as the difference between the sales proosseds and the camying amouwnt of the
aasat, or retirement of an asset, is recognized in profit or loss.

Software Equipment
Sofeware equipment is measured on iniial recognition at cost. Subseguently, software is camied at cost less

sccumulated amortization and any accumulated impeiment losses. Costs incurred duning research or
development phase are recognized &3 expense wihen incumed.

Sofware iz amortized over the estimated usaful life of ten (10) years and assessed for impairment whenewvar
there s an indication that the software may be impaired.

The amortization peniod and the amorization method wsed are reviewed at least at each reporting date.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of futwre economic bensfits
embadied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization perod or method, as appropriate, and
are treated &5 changes in accounting estimata. The amorization expense on software is recognized in the
staterment of comprehensive income consistent with the funciion of the software.

Inwestment Properes

Investment properties refer to real and other properties acguired (ROFA), other than those wsed for banking
purposes, acquired by the Bank in satiement of loans through foreclosure or dation in peyment andlor for other
resgsons, whose canmying amount will be recoversd principally through a sabe rensaction.

Properties that are held either 1o earn rentsl income or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
significantly ocoupied by the Bank are classified as investment properties.

Investment properties are messured indbally at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to indial
recognition, investment properties, except for land, are stated ab cost bess accumulated depreciation and
impairment losaes, if any. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in valee. Depreciation of building ciassified
&3 Investment property is celculated on & straight-line basis over its estimated useful life from the date of
scquisition.

An investrment property, which consists of land and building acquired through an exchangpe fransscion is
measared at fair value of the assst acguired unless the fair value of such an assat cannot be measwred, in
which case, the invesiment property acquined i3 measured at the camying amount of asset given up. Foreciosed
properties are classified under “Investment properties” upon (&) entry of judgment in case of judicial forecioswre;
() execution of Sheriff's Cerificate of Sale in case of extra-udicial foreciosure; or () notarization of the Deed
of Dacion in case of dation in paymment (dacion en pago).

The difference between the fair valee of the assst acquired and the carmying amount of the asset given up is
recognized as unrealized gain (loss) on indtial recognition of imestment properties in profit or losa.

Transfers to, and from, investment property are made when, and only when, there i & change in use, evidenced
by:

{a) Commencement of swner-occupation, for a transfer from investment property o owner-occupied propery;

(o) Commencement of development with a view of sale, for & transfer from investment property to real
properties held for sale and development;

{c} End of ;wmner occupation, for a tranafer from owner-occupied property o investment property; or

{d) Commencement of an operating kease to another party, for a transfer from real properies held for sale
and development to investment property.
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Transfers to and from investment property $o not result in gain or loss.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or whan the invesiment
propedy is permanenthy withdrawn from use and no future bensfit s expected from is disposal. Any resulting
gain or loss from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is included in profit or loss in the period
of retirerment or disgosal.

Impairment of Mon-Financial Assets
MWon-financial sssets are reviewad st each financial reporting date to determine whether there s any indication
of impairment or an impairment loss previowsly recognized no longer exists or may have decressed.

Among others, the factors that the Bank considers important wiich could trigger an impeirment review include
thie following:

significant or profonged dedine in fair value of the asset;

market interest rates or other market rates of returmn on investments have increased during the perod, and
those increases are likely to affect the discount rate wsed in calculating the asset's value in use and
decraase the assel’s recoverable amount matenaly;

zignificant underperformance relative to expected histonical or projected future operating resulis;
significant changes in the manner of use of the acguired assets or the strategy for overall businesa; or
significant negative industry o economic tremds.

If any such indication exists or when an annual impairment testing for an assat is reguired, the Bank makes &
formal estimate of the assais recoverable amount The recoverable amount = the higher of an asset’s fair
value kess costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale
of the asset in an arm's length transaction. In assessing value in wse, the estmated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rabe that reflacts cument market assessments of the
tirme walue of money and the risks specific to the asset

Whenever the carmying amount of an asset exceeds its recoversbls amount, the asset is considered impaired
and ks written down 1o its recoverable amownt and an impairment loss 8 recognized in profit or loss inthe period
inwhich it arises. An impaimment loss is reversed if there has been & change in the estimates used 1o determing
the recowerable amount, only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount doss not exceed the camying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impairment are recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation or
amortization expense 8 adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carnying amount on & systematic
basis over its remaining kife.

Equity

Comman sharnes

Commaon shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the isswe of new shares or
options are shown in eguity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

Defici
Dieficit includes all current and prior pericd results of operations of the Bank as disclosed in the statements of
comprehenalve income (less) and staternents of chamges in aquity.

Rewvenus nithomn

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract has been
satisfied, either at a point in ime or over time. Revenue is recognized owver time if one of the follkkwing criteria
= met (&) the customer simultaneously receives and conswmes the benefils a3 the Bank perform its
obligations; (b) the Bank's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
s created or enhanced; or (¢) the Bank's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use o the
Bank and the Bank has an enforceable rght to payment for performance completed o date. Otharnwisa, revenue

is recognized at a point in Bme.

The Bank also assesses s revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The
Bank has sosessed that it Bcts a3 & principal in sl of its revenue sources.
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The follewing specific recognition chiteria must atso be met befora revenue is recognized:
Inderest imcome on loans amd ofher recedvables

Inkerest income is recognized using the effective interest method. The EIR of a financial instrument i the rate
that exacily discownts the estimated future cash recelpts and payments through the expecied life of the financial
asaset or financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate. to the net camying amount of the finencial
saset or finencial lability. When calculsting the EIRL the Bank estimates the future cash flows considering all
cantracteal terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses. The caloulation of the EIR includes
&l fees, ransaction costs, and all other discownts and premiums that are an intagral part of the EIR. Transaction
casts are incremental costs that are directly atiributabls to the acguisition or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability.

Omca the recorded value of & financial assst or growp of similar financial assats has been reduced due 1o an
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original EIR used to discount future cash
flows.

For past due loans, the Bank does not accrue interest income in compliance with te BSP regulations.
EZervice changes and fees

The Bank eams fees and commission income from a diverse range of senices it provides to its customers.
Fees eamed for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
cammisaion income and credit-related fees. Service fees are collected from borrowers fo cowver direct and
indirect expenses in processing credit applications.

Imderest income on imvestments and deposits

Inkerest income on investments and deposits is recognized as it accrues on & me proportion beasis taking into
account the effective yield on the asset and is presented gross of applicable final tax withheld by banks.

Other income

Revenus is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other than from the usual business

operations, that will flow 1o e Bank Shwowgh an increase in asset or reduction in liability that can be reliabhy
measured.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a decreass in
an assal of an increase in a iabiity has ansen that can be reliably messured. They are recognized (a) on the
basis of a direct association betwesn the costs incured and the eaming of specific items of income; (o) on the
basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefils are axpecied to Bfse over
gaveral accounting pericds and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or (c)
immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future
economic benefits do not guslify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the staternent of financial position as an
saset Other operating expensas are costs attributable to the administrative and other business activities of the
Bank_

Inderest expenss

Inkerest expense is recognized in profit or loss when incurmed. It is calculated using the effective interest method
and credited to the depositon’ sccowunts regularly.

Employes Benafits

Ehori-term benefits. The Bank recognizes a liability, net of amounts slready paid and an expense for services
rendered by employses during the period. Unpaid benefits at the end of the financial reporting period are
recognized as accrued expense while benefits paid in advance are recognized as prepayment to the extent
that these will kead to a reduction in fulure peyments. Short-term benefits given by the Bank o is employess
include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and
mon-monetany benefits.
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FRetirement benefits. The Bank does not have an established retirement plan and only conforms io e minimaam
reguistory benafit under the Retirement Pay Law (Republic Act (RA) No. 7641}, which is of a defined benafit
type. RA Mo, T641 requires a provision for retirement pay to gualified private sector employess in the absence
of any retirement plan in the entity. The reguiatory benefit is paid in & lemp-sum amount upon retirement.
Defined bensfit plan defines an amownt of retirement bensfit that an employes will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors swuch &3 sge, years of service and Compensabon.

Retirement benefit cost is determined using the projected unit credit method. This methed reflects the services
rendered by the employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumpions concerning employess’
projected salanies_ Actuarial valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, with option 1o accelerate when
significant changes o undedying assumptions occur. The components of defined benefit cost incude servica
cost, net interest on the net defined bensafit liability that is recognized in profit or loss, and remeaswements of
the net defined benefit liability that are recognized in OCI. Remeaswrements of the net defined benafit liability
recognized in GCI shall not be reclassified to profit or loss in 8 subseguent penod.

The retirement liability recognized in the staternent of financial position is the present walue of the Bank's
defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of the financial reporting period leas the fair valee of plan asseis.
The DBO is calculated by an independsnt actuary using the projected unit credit method. Uinder this methaod,
the current senvice cost is the present value of retirement benefits payable in the fulure with respect o services
rendered in the curment year. The present valee of the DBO & determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rate on government bonds that are denominated in the cumency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that heve terms to maturity approxdmating to the terms of the related retirement
obligation.

Plan assats_ if any. are assats that are held by a long-term employee benafit fund. They are neither available
o the creditors of the Bank, nor can they be paid directly to the Bank. The feir valee of plan assets & based on
market price information.

Actuarnial gains and losses arising from experience adjustmenis and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to eguity in OCl in the penod in which ey anse.

Fast service costs are recognized immedistely in profit or loss.

Lesses

At the inception of a contract, the Bank sssesses whether a contract is, or containg, a lease. A conbract s, or
contsing, a lease if the contract conveys the nght o controd the wse of an identified assat for a perniod of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whather a contract conveys the right io control the use of an identified
saset. the Bank assesaes whether:

= ihe contract involves an kdentified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
phiysically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier
has a substantive subatiution right, then the ssset B not identified;

» the Bank has the right to obtain substantialty all of the economic benefits from wse of the asset throwghout
thie period of use; and

=  ihe Bank hes the right to direct the use of the asset The Bank when it has the decision making rights that
are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset & used. The Bank has the right io direct
the uae of the asset of either:
- the Bank has the nght o operate the asset; or
- the Bank designed the asset in a way that predetemmines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Bank a5 8 lesses. The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of kow value assets. The Bank recognizes right-of-use ssseis representing the
right to use the underlying assets and lease liabiliies to make kease payments.

The night-of-wse asset is initially measured as if the standard had been applied since the commencement datea
but discounted waing the lesses’s |BR at the date of initial application.

The rght-of-use asset B subsequently depreciated wsing the straight-line method over the shorter of the
eatimated useful life of the asset or the lease tem ranging from three to five years.

In addition, the right-of-use is perodically reduced by impaimment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeaswramants of the lease Rability.
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The leasa liability = indtially messured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be resdily
detarmined, the Bank's IBR. Generally, the Bank uses itz IBR as the discount rate.

Leasa payments indueded in the measwrement of the lease liability comprise of the following:

« fxed payments, including in-substance fced paymenis;

=  varasble lease payments that depend on an index rate, indtially messured wusing the index or rate a3 at the
commencement date;

*  amownts expecied 1o be payable under residesl value guarantbes; smd

» the exercise price under & purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
option renewal pened f the Bank is reasonably to exercise an extension opion, and pensities for early
termination of a lease unbess the Bank s reasonably certain not to terminate early.

Subsequent 1 initsl measwement lease liabiliies increase a3 a result of inerest charged at a constant rate
on the balance owtstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. It i remessured when there is a change
in future lesse paymenis or rate, if there i a change in the Bank's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under & residual value gusrsnies, or if te Bank changes its assesament of whether it will exercise a
purchasa, extenaion or ermination opbon.

‘When the lease liability s remeaswred in this way, a comesponding adjusiment is made bo the camying amaownt
of the right-of-use sssat or is recognized in profit or loss if the camying amouwnt of the night-of-use asset has
e reduced fo zero.

Ehort-term lesses. The Bank applies the short-term leass recognition exemption 1o is shor-term leases
(Le., thoae leases that have a lease tarm of 12 months or less from the commencemeant date and do not contain
& purchase option). Lease payments on shor-term lesses ame recognized &5 expense on a straight-ine basis
over the lease term.

Taxes

Cuwrent Tax. Curment tex is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or kess for the year,
uaing tax rates enactad or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous yesrs.

Current tax relating 1o items recognized directy in eguity is recognized in equity and not in the staternenis of
comprehenaive income. The Bank penocdically evaluates positions taken in the tax retumns with respect io
situations in which applicable tax reguilations are subject to interpretations and esiablishes provisions where

appropriate.

Dreferred Tax. Deferrad tax s recognized using the labdity method in respect of temporary differences betwesan
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites for finencial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation

PApOEES.
Defemsd tax kabiities are recognized using the liability method for all taxable temporary differences, axcept:

= where the deferred tax liabidity snises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in 8
tramsaction that is not a business combination and, at the tme of the transection, affects neither the
accounting profit nor texable profit or loss; and

s with respect 10 taxable temporary differences associgted with investments in shares of stock of
subsidiaries, whera the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carmyforward benefits of wnuesed
tax credits - Minimurm Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) and unused tax losses - Met Operating Loss Carmy Cver
(MOLCO), to the exent that it is probable that texabde profit will be available sgainst which the deductible
temporary differences, and the cammyforaard bensfits of MCIT and NOLGO can be utilized, except

= where the deferred tex asset relating to the deductibde temporsrny difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or kabdity in a transection that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
tramaaction, affects neither the accounting profit mor taxable profit or lees; and

= with respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in shares of stock of
subaidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognized only 1o the exient that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foresesabls future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utiized.

The cemying amount of deferred tax sssets is reviewsd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent fhat
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax ssset
o b ubiized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probabde that fubure texabde profit will allow the defermed tax asset to be recovernsd.

The measwement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Bank expecis, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or satile the carmying amouwnt of its sssets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax sssets and kabiities sre measured at the tax rabes that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is reslized or the lisbdity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enscied or
substantvely enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in the statements of comprehenaive income, excapt o the exbent
that it relates 0 & businesa combinaton, or iflems recognized directly in eguity or in other comprehensie
income.

Defemred tax assets and deferred tax liabilibes are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off cument
tax assats against current tax liabilites and the deferred taxes relais to the same taxable entity and the samea
taxation suthority.

Final tax. Final tax represents the tax paid by the Bank on interest income earmed from its bank deposits and
investrnents.

Provisions

Proviskons are recognized when: (&) the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
evants; (b} it is probable (i.e_, more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will e reguired to satte the obligation; and (c) & reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to sefte a provision s expected 1o be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursament i3 recognized as & separate asset only when it is virbeally certsin that reimbursament
will be received. The amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not excesd the amount of the prowviskon.
Proviskons are reviewed at esch reponing date and adjusted io reflect the cument best estimate.

If the affect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market sssessment of the Bme vales of money and the risks
spedific 1o the liability. Where discounting is used, the increass in e provision due to the pesssge of ime s
recognized as inkerest axpense.

Related Partes

Farties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 1o control the other party
of exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Farties are
also considered o be related if they are subject o common control and significant influence. Redated parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

Contingent lighiliies are not recognized in the finencial staternents. They are disclosed in the notes 1o the
financial statements unless the possibdity of an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits s remote.
Contingent ssseis are not recognized in the financisl statements but are disclosed in the notes o the finencial
staternents when an inflow of economic benefits is probabla.
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=il e Bl : ..= Reporng Lale

Post year-end events that provide sdditional information about the Bank's financial position at the reponting
date (adjusting events) are reflecied in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are mot ad|usting
events are disclosed in the notes o the financial staternents when matenal.

Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparstion of the accompanying financial staterments in conformity with PFRS reguires the Bank's
management to make |udgments and estimates that affect the application of accounting policies, reponed
amounts of assets, liabilites, income and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent
lizbilities. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments and assumplions used in arriving & the
eslimates to change. The effects of any change in judgmenis and estimates are reflecied in the financial
statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimaies sre continually of future events evalested and are based on historical expenience
and other factors, incheding expectations that are believed to be reasonable wnder the circumstances. Revision
o accounting estimate is recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the penod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and future
periods.

Judgrnents

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which hawve the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:

Classfying Financial insiruments. The Bank classifies its financial assets depending on the business maodel for
managing those financial assets and whether the contractual terms of the financal asset are SPPI on the
principal amount outstamding.

The Bank performs the business model assessment based on observable faciors. These include the
performance of the business model and the financial assets hald within that business model are evaluated and

reported to the Bank's key mansgement personnel; and the risks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particulsr, the way those risks ane
managed.

In perfoamrming the SFPI test, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the period for
which the interest rate is sai, contingent events that would change the amownt and timing of cash fiows and
other features that may modify the consideration for the time value of momey_

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities = sat out in Note 27 10 the financial stalements.

Classfping vestments. The classification under Investments requires significant judgment In making this
judgment, the Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investmenits to matunty. If the Bank fails 1o
keep these investments to matwnity other than in cerain specific crcumstances — for example, selling an
insignificant amount close o maturity — the Bank will be reguired o reclassify the entire portiolio as financial
saset st FVOCI The investiments would therefore be measared at fair valse and not at amortized cost.

Inveatments of the Bank amounted to ™1 445 798 a3 &t December 31, 302 and 2021 (see Mote 8).

Dretermimimg Classifcation of Acguired Properties. The Bank classifies s ascquired propedties &3 bank
premises, fumninme, fixtures and equipment if used in operations, as assets held for sale if expected that the
propenies will be recoverad through sale rather than use, or as investment properties if intendad to be held for
capital appreciation.

Determination Whether an Arrangement Confains a Leaze. The Bank assesses whether an amangement
containg a lease based on PFRS 16, as disclosed in Mote 3. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conweys the right to control the vse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for conaideration.

The Bank reassesses whether & contract is, or containg, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the contract
are changed.
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The details of these lease agresments are disclosed in Mote 23,

The Bank has entered into lease agreements as a lessee. Depreciation of right-of-use asssts and interest
expense on lease labilities recognized in profit or loss are disclosed in Motes 30 and 23, respectively_

Diatermining the Lease Term of Contracts with Renewsa! and Termination Options — Bank as lessee. The Bank
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the leass, together with any periods covered by an
option to exiend the kesse if it is reasonably centain to be exercised, or any penods coverad by an option io
terminate the kesse, if it is reasonably certain not o be exercimed.

The Bank has several lease contracts thet include extension and termination opbions. The Bank applies
judgemeant in evaluating whether it is reasonsbly certain whether or not 1o exercise the option to renew or
terrninate the lesse. That is, it considers sl relevant factors that create an economic incantive for it 1o exercise
aither the renewsal or termination. After the commencement date, the Bank reassesses the lease term if there
i3 a significant event or change in croemstances that is within is conirol and affects its ability o exercise or
mot to exercise the option to renew or to teminate.

Refer to Mote 23 for information on potential future rental payments relating 1o periods following the exarcise
date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Evalugting Deferred Tax. In determining the amownt of current and defermed tax, the Bank takes into sccownt
the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Bank believes
that its sccresds for tax liabilites are adequate for all open tax years based on its sssessment of many factons,
including interpretation of tex laws and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumplions
and may involve a seres of judgments about future events. New information may become availlable that causes
the Bank to change is judgment reganding the adequacy of existing tax liabilites: such changes to tax liabilites
will impact tax expensa in the period that such a determination is made.

Estimates and Assumpdions

The following are the key assumpiions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncenainty
at the financial reporting date that hawve a significant sk of causing a material adjustment 1o the camying
amounts of gasets and labilties within the next finencial year:

Estimating Alowance for ECL on Loans and Other Receivables. The Bank reviews its loans and other
recaivables at each financial reporting date to assess whether an ECL should be recognized in profit or koss or
loans and other recaivables balance should be written off. In particular, judgment by management is required
in the: estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance for ECL
required. Such estimate i3 based on assumption about & nember of factors and achesl results may differ
resulting in future changes to the allowance for ECL.

Allowance for ECL represents management's estimate for ECL inherent in the loan portfolio after consideration
of prevailing and anticipated economic condiions, prior loss experience and evaluations made by the BSP.

The Bank provides allowance for ECL on loans and ofher receivables equivalent io the estimated losses that
may be incwmed in the collection of all of its outstanding loans. The losses are estimated after taking indo
consideration the account's historical collection experience, the collsteral positon of the Bank credit
docurmentation, subseguent collections and other factors that may affect the collectability of these accounts.

The sdequacy of the allowance for ECL is determined periodically on the basis of qualitative appraisal of loan
accounts individeally which is grouped acconding to the exposure to credit risk.

In addiion to specific allowance against individually significant boans and other receivables, the Bank also
makes a collective ECL allowance against exposures which, althowgh not specifically identified as requining a
aspecific allowance, have a greater risk of default then when originally granted. This collective allowance is
amed on any deterioration in the intemal rating of the koan since it was granted. This collective allowance is
based on changes in factors that are indicative of incurred losses, such as deterioration in payment status and
undedlying property prices, amaondg ofhers.
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Where poasibde, the Bank seeks fo restnucture loans rather than to take possesaion of the collatersd. This may
involve exdending the payment amangements and the agreement for new loan conditions. Once the terms have
een renegotiated. the lcan iz no longer considered past due. Management conbinuously reviews restructured
loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely o occar. The loans continue to be
subject to an individual or collactive impairment sssessment, calculated using the boan's onginel EIR. The
difference batween the recorded value of the original loan and the present value of the restruectured cash fiows,
discountad at the onginal EIR. is recognized in profit or loss.

The allowance for ECL is established through provision for ECL charged to cusrent operations. Loans are
written off against the allowance for ECL when management believes that the collectabiity of the principal is
undikaly.

Allowance for BECL on loans and other receivables amounted to P23,352 502 and P™19,859646 as at
December 31, 3022 and 2021, respectively (==& Motes 8 and 13). The carrying value of loans and other
recelvables amounted o #1723, 943,664 and ™154, 056 648 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively
{zea Mote 9

Lretermimimg Fair Value of Acguined Azsets Classified as Investment Froperties. The Bank detemmines the fair
value of the scquired properties through intemnedly or extemally-generated appraisal. The appraised valse i
determined based on the curment economic and market conditions as well as the physical condition of the

properties.
The fair values of inwestmeant properties are disclosed in Mot 11.

Estimating Usafui Lives of Bank Premizes, Fumifure, Fudures and Equipment. The Bank estimates the useful
lves of depreciable bank premises, furniture, fixures and equipment for the purpose of computing depreciation
and amortization based on the perod ower which the assets are expected 10 be available for use. Their
estimated useful ives are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
due 1o physical wear and tesr, technical or commercial obsolescence, and legal or other limits on the use of
the assats. The collective assessment of industry practice, intemnal technical evaluation and expenience with
similar assets 3 also considened in the estimation.

It ks possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates
broasght about by changes in factors mentioned. The amownts and timing of reconded expenses for any period
wiould be affectad by changes in these factors and circurmatances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of
bank premizes, fumnitere, fidures and equipment would increase recorded other operating expenses and
decrease assats.

Thera were no changes in the estimated useful Ikwes of property and equipment for the years ended
December 31, 302 and 3021,

The carmying value of bank premises, furnitre, fidures and equipment as at December 31, 3032 and 2021
amounied o P4 555262 and 5 349 974, respectivaly (see Mot 10).

Draterminimg impaiment of Non-Financial Asssts. PFRS require that an impairment review be performed when
cartain impairment indicators are present. The Bank's policy on estimating the impairment of non-finencial
saseis i3 discussed in detad in Note 3. Determining the fair value of non-financial assets, which requires the
detarmination of futwre cash fliows expected to be generated from the continued use and ulimate disposition
of swch assets, requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the finencial
statements. Fulure events could cause the Bank to conclude that non-financial assats are impaired. Amy
resulting impairment bess could heve & matenal adverse impact on the finencial condition and resulis of
operations of the Bank.

Though mansgement believes that the ssswmplons used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the
financial statements are approprigbe and reasonable, significant cheanges in these assumplions may matenially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impeairment loss could have a matenal adverss
effiect on the resuits of operations of the Bank.

Alowanoce for impairment on invesiment properties amownted o ®3593 083 and 385568 =3 at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively (sea Motes 11 and 13). The carmying value of investment properiies
amounted o P4TT 816 and 92,007 as at December 31, 202 and 2021, respectively (see Mote 11).
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There are no indications of impairment on bank premises, fumiure, fdunes and equipment. Thas, no prosision
for impairment kesses was recognized by the Bank on these assets for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021. The carrying value of bank premises, furmnitere, fidures and eguipmeant amowsnted to 4,655,262 and
£5,349 974 as at Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, respeciively (see Mobe 10).

Daterminimg Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Azsets. The Bank reviews the carmying amount of deferred tax
asnsets gt each finencial raporting date and redeces the same to the extent that it is no longer probable thet
sufficient taxable income will e available in future periods to allow all or part of the defemed tax assets to be
utilized. Significant management judgment i3 reguired to determinge the amount of deferred tax assets that can
b recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income fogether with the futwe tax
planning sirakegies.

Management believes that it will not generate sufficient taxable income in the futwre to utilize the benefits of
defarrad tax assets, thus, no deferred tax assets were recognized in 2022 and 2021 (see Mote 21).

Estimating Present Value of Refiremeant Lishilfty. The presant walue of the DBEO depends on a numbsr of fachors
that are determined om an actuarial basks using a number of assumptions. The assurnptions wsad in determining
the nat cost for retirement include, among others the discount rate and salary increase rate_ Any chamnges in
the assumpons will hkave an impact on the camying amownt of the retirerment obligation.

The Bank determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each financial reporting period. This is the
interast rate that s used to determine the present value of estimated futwre cash outfliows expected to be
required to settle the retirerment obligation. In determining the approprigte discownt rate, the Bank considers
the interest rate on government bonds that are denominated in the currency inowhich the benefits will be paid
and that have terrms to mabunity approsimating to e terms of the related retirement obligation.

Other key assumptions for retirerment obligation are based in part on cument market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in Mote 22,

While the Bank believes that the sssumplions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences bataean
acieal experences and sssumplons may materislly affect the cost of employee benefits and related

obdigations.

Retirement benefit costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
amounted o P431_ 251 and 583 921, respectively (see Motes 20 and 22).

Az at December 31, 202 and 2021, the met retirement assat (liabllity) of the Bank amounted to ™345 956 and
(1,712, 780), reapectively (sea Note 22).

Estimating the IBR. The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the kease, therefore, it uses
iz IBR 10 measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Bank would have o pay to bomow
ower & similar terrn, and with & similar secuwrity, the funds necassary to obtain an aaset of & similar value o the
right-of-wme saset in a similar economic envircnmeant. The IBR therefore reflects what the Bank Swould have 1o
pay’, which reguires sstimation when no observable rates are available or whan they need o be adjusted 1o
reflect the terms and conditions of the kease. The Bank estimates the IBR uwsing cbservable inputs (such as
market interast rates) when available and is required to make caertain entity-specific estimates.

Gash and Other Cash ltems

Thizs account consists of:

| Fir d 20

Cash on hand P2.8E5 807 P2 ER2 394
Checks and other cash ilems 1,993 751 -
P4 575 48 P2 662 394
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Cash on hand represants actual cash in vault — kocal cumencies and those in the possession of the cashiers
and the tellers as of dose of the operations on December 31, 202 and 2021 whereas checks amnd other cash
iterms pertain to checks that are stlll in the possession of the Bank's cashiers and are for deposit the nesxt
banking day after year end.

Due from Banghko Sentral ng Pilipinas (B5F)

The account consists of local currency deposits maintained with the BSP to meet legal resanse requiremeants
that are not available for use in the Bank's day-to-day operations.

Effective April &, 2012, through BSP Circular Mo, 753, deposits in compliance with reserve requirements no
longer eam interest The balance of the sccount amounted to 5,190,872 and 388225 as at
December 31, 20E2 and 2031, respectively.

Due from Other Banks

Thizs account consists of:

02 2024

Savings P40,234 490 P55.054,231
Tirme 10,079 887 9,012,842
#50,314 47T PEd 067,073

Savings deposits are unrestricted and pre-terminabde. These deposits eam interest at the prevailing bank
depoait rate of ranges from 0.125% 1o 0.625% in 2022 and 0.0C% o 0.26% in 2021.

Tirme deposits of the Bank with other commencial banks usually heve fied rates and maturity dastes. These
depoaits camy inberest rates ranging from 1% to 2.50% in 202 and 1.50% to 1.75% in 2021.

Interest income eamed amounted t #1177, 239 and P374,400 for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and
2021, respeactivedy.

Investments at Amortized Cost

The sccount consists of Land Bank of the Philippines (LEP) agranian reform ten (10) year bonds amounting 1o
™,445 798 as af December 31, 2022 and 2021 detail as follows:

2022 20

Cost 1,500,000 ™1 500,000
Unamorntized discount [54,202) {54,202)
P 445 T8E ™1 445,793

Interest income eanmed on investrments amowntad 10 nd for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021.
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4, Loans and Other Recelvables, Net

This account conaists of:

Mote 2022 2021
Lioains
Industrial loans 81,989,006 P69.636,813
Commercial kans 75,756,280 T4 819047
Agrarian reform and other sgricultursl credit boans 16,142 648 9,713,540
Other loans 703,350 il 232
174,591 285 154,871,602
Accounts recefvable 11,235,238 10,537 863
Sales confract recedvable 3,967 BIB 2ETT, T4
Acconeed interest recefvable 6,501 815 5820 235
196,286, 166 173,016,494
Allowance fior ECL 13 {23,352,502) {19,850 646)

P172,943 664 P 154,056,848

Odher koans represent government employes koans and commercial real estate loans.

Accounis receivable comprised recetvables from sales of real and other properties acguired, 555 benefit
claima and advances to officers and employess.

Sales contract recaivable refers to ssseis acquired in setlement of loans through foreclosure or dation in
payment and subsequenty sold on installment basis wheraby the titles 1o the said properties are transferred 1o
the buyers only upon full payment of the sgreed selling price. Inlerest eamed on sales contract recalvable,
included in interest income on loans and other recehvables, amounted to ®105,016 and 437,850 for the years
ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021, respeciively.

Dwuring 202, the Bank sold an invesiment property with a cost of P15,775 (see Mote 11) for an agreed selling
prica of ®2 000,000 (see Wote 11). Downpayment recefved from the sale amounted to ®50,000 while the
remaining balance is paid through instaliment reporied as part of sales contract receivable. Gain on sale
recognized by the Bank amounted to #4984 325 (see Mote 19).

Loamns eam annueal interest rabes ranging from &% to 48% in 2022 and 6.50% to 48% in 2021 and 3021, Interest
income eamed on loans amownted to ™38 803 801 and #33 951 404 in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

With the foregoing level of allowance for ECL. mansgement believes that the Bank has sufficient allowsance 1o
manage any nisk from non-collection or non-collateral of the Bank's loans and other receivables.
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10, Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Met

The composition of and movements in the account are &3 follows:

Furnibure,
Fixtures
and Leasahold Tramsportabon Software
Note  Equpment Improvements Eguipment ___Equipment Total
Cost
Al Jarwary 1, 2021 PT.EET31T  P2158,174  P1,715138 PLETE,000 14,136,680
Additions 287,036 - 1,561,600 1.86B 635
Dispesal . - {1,054,998) - {1,054,638)
Al December 31_ 2021 7974 353 7158174 7241800 2,576,000 14,950,327
Additions 985,006 - . - 985,006
Al December 31, 2022 8,050,449 3,158,174 2,241,800 2,576,000 15,035,423
Accumulated Depreciation and Amertization
Al Jarsary 1, 2021 6,279,950 B09,244 1,411,031 257,600 B.757.B25
Depreciation and
amonization 20 656,008 340,211 264,381 343 467 1,604 DET
Dispesal - - (TE2. 430) {762 439)
Al December 31, 2021 6,936,858 1,149,455 812,973 601,067 9,600,353
Depreciation and
amonization 20 730421 324,567 367,200 257,600 1,670,608
Al December 312022 7,667,279 1,474,042 1,260,173 B58,667 11,280.161
Net Book Value
At December 31, 2022 1,292,170 PEB4,132 POE1,627 1,717,333 P4.655,262
Al December 31, 2021 #1037485 P 008710 P 3ZAEIT 1074033 P5.340,974

In 2021, the Bank sold a fransportation equipment with a net book valee of 292 550, The Bank recefved
proceads from the sale of ransportation eguipment amounting to ®202 554, No gain nor loss was recognized
from the sabe of said assets in 2022 and 2021,

The Bank assesses at each financial reponting date whether there s an indication that an tem of bank premises,
fumnitwre, fixbures and equipment may be impaired and believes that there is mo such indication as at
December 31, 3022 and 3021,

Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that are still in use by the Bank amounted to #7626 927 and
™G, 448 682 as at Decemnber 31, 2022 and 2021, respeciivaly.

Under BSP rules, investments in bank premises, fumnibere, fiztures and aquipment should not exceed S50% of
the Bank's nat worth. As at December 31, 202 and 2021, the Bank is in compliance with this BSP reguirement.
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11 Investment Properties, Net

This account represenis parcels of land which are held for capital appreciation, acquired in setiement of kxans
carried at cost less allowance for impaiment.

Transportation
HNofa Equipment Land Total

Cost
Ap January 1, 2022 and

Decamber 31, 2021 " P437.575 PABT ETS
Additions 400,000 - 400 000
Disposal - {15.776) {15.776)
At Decermnber 31, 2022 400,000 471,788 = Fil
Allowance for impalment
At January 1, 2021 - 229678 229670
Prowishon for impaimnent 13 - 165,868 165, 8840
An Decermnber 31, 203 - 395.568 395,568
Reversal of impairment 13 - {1.585) {1,585)
Al December 31, 2022 - 393,883 303883
Met Book Value
At December 31, 2022 #400,000 P77.B16 P4ATT B16
At December 31, 2031 - Po2 00r PO2.007

The Bank has no investment properties that generated rental income for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2029

Expenses from these investment properties which do nof generate rental income consists of:

Note 2022 iy |

Site survey and other expenses 20 PEE1,0861 -
Real property tax” 20 118,028 85 308
PE00,089 Pas5, 308

“Presenied a5 pavt of taxes and lioenses

The fair values of the Bank's investment properties have been determined by BSP-accredited appraisers wsing
the market data approsch.

In 2021, the Bank acquired the senices of a third-party appraiser to determine the fair value of land with cost
amounting to ®249.013. The fair value of said investment properties amounted o 23 574,000,

The latest appraisal report of remaining kand with cost amounting to B222 7886 is as st December 31, 2045
while additions to tranaportation equipment during 202 was not appratsed.

The total fair value of imeestmeant properties of the Benk amounted to B25 980, 200 and 30,675,200 a3 at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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12 Oiher Assets

This account consists of:

MNote 2022 2021

Deposits PE4E BEE PR32 588
Prepaid tax 29 576.298 -
Fregayments 3T 269 37,873
Stationery and supplies 266 416 33 578
Petty cash fund 11,000 11,000
P2.073 871 m1 510,435

Deposits are payments by the Bank to its kessors and other service providers. Mo indication of impsadrment was
identified by mansgement in 2022 and 2021,

1

Allpwance for Impairment and ECL

A reconciliation of e allowance for impaiment and ECL is as follows:

Loans and Other Imvestmeant
Receivables Properties
{zea Mote 0) [see Mote 11) Taodal
Balance &3 at January 1, 2021 19,103,458 P220 870 P19.333,137
Provision 8,539 332 165,880 a.708 221
‘Write-off {7, 7E3.144) - (7,783 144)
Balance a3 at December 31, 2021 19,8549 646 305 588 20,255 214
Prowision (reversal) 3,492 _B56 (1,585) 3481271
Balance as at December 31, 2022 #3352 502 383 983 23,746 485

In 2021, the BOD approved the write-off of fully provided and long-cutstanding loans receivable from default
scoounts amownting to ™7, 783,144,

Alowance fior ECL on loans and ofher receivables comprised the following:

2022 202

Specific allowance
Loan to ndividuals for consumption punposes 13,096, TEE ™11.517.881
Accounts receivable 6, 740, 306 5,736,685
Accrued interest receivable 2,071, 446 20075718
21,908,520 19,330,284
General allowance 1,443 882 528 352
#23, 352 502 P19 B50 646

The nonperforming loans (NPLs) of the Bank amounted to P35.334.975 and ™22 408066 as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The NPLs that are fully coverad by allowance for ECL amownted
to 8,231 804 and 5,408,014 a8 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectvely. The Bank recognized
aliowance for ECL on NPLs based on its slaging assessment of credit-impaired financial assets.

BSP Memorandum 2020061 states that BSP Supervised Financial nstitutions (BSFl) are expected io
conduct a comprehensive assesament of the quality of its loan portfolio before applying for the relief bo ook
the allowance for credit osses on a steggered basks. BSFIs ahould assess each loan account in determining
aliowance for credit losses. f assessment on an individual account basis 18 not feasible, the sssessment should
b= done on & collective basis or at the portfolio level. Consistent with the provisions of the Guidelines on Credit
Risk Management, the propriety and adequacy of allowance for credit losses should be independerthy
reviewsad. BSFls may apply for approval of staggered booking of allwance credit losses until March 8, 2021,
Upon recaipt of BSP approval. BSFls are expecied to immediately book the amouwnt of allowance for credit
loases that showld be recognized in the first year.
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On April 20, 2021, the BSP approved the Bank's application for staggered booking of aliowance of credit losses.

Detaits of the steggered booking are disclesed in Mote 2.

Wiith the foregoing level of allowance for ECL, mansgement believes that the Bank has sufficient allowancs o
manage any nsk from non-collection or non-collsteral of the Bank's loans and other receivables.

14.

Deposit Liabiiities

This account conaists of:

il 2021
Time P113,66T 470 P17 525533
Savings 32,154,178 3.715, 716
P45 841,648 P49 241,249

Anmeal interest rates on deposit iabdities in 2032 and 3021 follow:
2022 2021
Time 1.50% bo 7.50%- 1.75% to 7.50%
Savings 0.50% 0.50%

Intereat axpense on deposit lisbiliies consists of:

il 2021
Time P4 952 137 P3.547 116
Savings 104 688 146,075
P5.056, 825 P3.60319

Under Section 251 of BSF Manual of Regulations for Banks, as amended by BSP Circular No. 1092, rural
banks are required to maintsin a reserve of at least 2% of ita demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings
depoaits (excluding basic deposit sccounts), and time deposite denominated in local curency, effective
July 31, 2020

Altematively, under BSP Circalar 1100-2020, Amendments fo the Aternathe Complance with the Resene
Requirements of Banks and Non-Bank Financial Instiubions with Quasi-Banking Funchons (WBOEs) affective
Cwchober 8, 2020, allemative modes of compliance with the required reserves against deposit and deposit
substitute iabdities may be availed by the Bank.

During 2021, the Bank availed the altemative mode to complied with the required reserve as shown on the
required and available reserdes as repored to the BESP.

Mot 2023 0

Avallable reserve
Dwuee from BSF ] #5,190,872 P368 225
Alternative compliance - 5,537 495
#5190 872 ™5 025 T30
Required reserve P2,916.833 =2 084 825

Amount shown in alternative compliance periain o the pesc-denominated loans that are granted to micro-,
small-, and mediom- enterprises (MSMEs), as defined under Section 332 Oefinition of Tems of the MORE.

The Bank is in compliance with the reserve requirement of the BSP as at December 31, 2022

See Mote 25 for the maturity profile of deposit liabilities &s &t December 31, 2022 and 3021,
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15

Bills Payable

in 2019, the Bank obtained bills payable from Producers Bank, a 3-month credit line with 8% interest per anmusm
o the principal amaunt of loan. This was fully paid in 2021 wherein payments made amountad 1o ™4, 971 578,
Interest expense incurred by the Bank for this bills payable amounted to #2086, 167 for the year 20E1.

In 2022, the Bank obtsined another bills payable from Producer's Bank, a &-month credit line with B% inlerest
per annum amounting to #5000 600,
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Accounts Payable and Other Liabllities

This account consists of:

2022 20

Accounts payable P4, 387,355 2 302077
Accneed expenses 1,753,173 1.483 489
FAccreed interest payable 1.546, 586 1,183,539
‘Withhwodding tax and other statuiory liabilites 392610 458 388
Miscellaneaus liabilites 107 000 107,000
P3. 166,724 P5.534,493

Accounts payable represents goods or senices purchased on credit from various suppliers which are payable
within one year.

Accresd expenses ae goods of sendces that have been received or supplisd but have not been paid, imvolced
of formally sgreed with the suppliers. it B necessany o estimate the amount or iming of accnests. howewver, the
uncartainty is generally much kess than for provisions.

Miscellaneous kabiities are recognized in the period in which the related money, goods or services are recened
of when a legally enforced claim against the Bank is established. They are recognized initialhy at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest meathod.

17

Redeemable Preferred Shares
The details of the Bank's redesmable preferance shares g3 at December 31, 302 and 2021 are as follows:

Amount Mo. of Shares

Preferred shares at 100 par value per share

Izsued and outstanding B4 000,000 A 000
Redemption at cost (521,200) {5,212)
At Decembser 31 P3.478, 500 34,788

Redeemable prefemmed shares are shares with mandatory redemption feature or & redemption feature outside
of the controd of the issuer. These are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Preferred shares sz &t December 31, 2022 and 2021 were Esued to LBP. Preferred shares shall have
preference ower common shares in assats of the Bank in the event of Bguidstion. Preferred shares shall share
in dividend declaration in accordance with the specific investment guidelines, policies and procedures of the
LEBP.
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18 Equity
The details of the Bank's share capital as at Decemnber 31, 2022 and 2021 follow:

2022 2021
Mo. of Mo. of
Amount shares Amourt shares
Common shares at 100 par value
per share
Authorized #196,000,000 1,860,000  P196,000,000 1,960,000
Subscribed
Balance ag at January 1 P158,434, 100 1,584,341  P153,B34,000 1,538,340
Izsued during the year 6.526,100 B5,.261 4,600,100 A6, 001
Balance as at December 31 164,960,200 1,649,602 158,434,100 1.5684 341
Subaoriptions receivabla {4.877,992) (4 87T 892)
Pald-up capital P60,082,208 ™53 556,108

On Septernber 13, 2012, the Bank's BOD and shereholders approved the increase in the Bank's authonzed
capital stock from 50,000,000, divided into 460,000 common shares and 40000 prefermed shares, both with
& par valus of ™00 per share, into #100,000,000 divided into 860,000 common shares and 40,000 prefermed
shares, both with & par value of ™00 per share. The said increase was approved by the BSP on
March 25, 2013 and the SEC on March 21, 2014,

On February 27, 2015, the Bank's BOD and shareholders resolved to incresse the Bank's authorized capital
ghock from P00, 000,000, divided into 860,000 commaon shares and 40,000 preferred shares, both with a par
value of ®100 per share, into F200 000,000 dvided into 1,860,000 common shares and 40000 prefared
shares, both with a par value of #4100 per share.

On March 6, 2018, BSP approved the increase in capitalzation with reference to the letter received dated
Agril 2, 201 8.

Om April 5, 2018, the Monetary Board approved the fransfer of 100% of the common shares of the Bank from
Fineda family, et al_ to Amang Rodriguez Hoddings, Inc., First Lucky Holdings Corp.. Compania de Maria Clara
Holdings and MBP Investmenis, inc. and isseanca of 270,000 shares of te Bank to First Lucky Holdings Conp.
and Compania de Maria Clara Hobdings.

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulstory requirements and
ratios is basad on the amount of the Bank's “unimpaired capial® {regulatory net worth) as reported to the BSP,
which is deterrnined on the basis of reguiatory accounting policies that differ from PFRS in some respects. The
minirmwm capital reguired for nural banks with head office located in the National Capital Region with up to 10
branches i 00,000,000, On October 28, 2014, the BSP issued Circulsr Mo. 854, Seres of 2014 requiring
minimum capitalization of ®F5000,000. Banks shall be given five years to comply with the minimwam
requirement &3 discussed in Mote 26. The details of the Bank's gualifiing capital as reported to the BSF are
shown in Mobe 26.

The nisk-based capital ratio of & bank, expressed a3 a percentage of gualifiying capital to risk-weighted aaseis,
shall mot be less than 10%. See MNote 26 for the discussions relating o the Bank’s capital manasgement.

In 2021, the Bank issued 46,001 common shares at issuance price of 100 per share, for gross proceeds of
4,601, 100.

In 2022, the Bank issued 65,261 common shares at issuance price of ®100 per share, for gross proceeds of
™5, 526,100,
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18, Other Operating Income

The details of the account follow:

Note 20E2 2021
Service changes and fees P4 266, 842 P4 064,947
Gain on SCR sale =] 1,984,225 -
Recowvery from written off loans 265865 1.200,000
Other income from kease modification 23 - @63 059
Effect of CREATE Act on the cumulative
remeaaurament koass 22 - 45 402
Penalies and miscallaneous 4,823 963 2 606,740
11,445 885 P9 460,148
Orther Operating Expenses
The details of the following accounts follow:
Note 20z2 20
Compensation and fringe benefita 16,588,557 P16 655 486
Oeoupancy and equipment-relatad T.257,554 6832 527
Management and profeasional fess 4,243 D61 3,860,505
Taxes and licenzas 4,122 982 3234775
Transpornation and trawel 1,730,854 1,778,887
Insurance 1,124,528 1,157,903
Training and development expensa 353,735 158,214
Postage, telephone and telegraph 273,088 252 814
Siatomery and supplies 218,215 265 084
Photocopying machine 118 446 118,537
Representation and entertsinment 21 76,684 105,947
Miscallaneous expensas 2 604,859 1,553 854
38,713,583 P36 264,623
Compensaton and frimge henefits
MNaofe 022 iy |
Salarnies and wages 12,207,250 ™12 417071
Employes benafits 2,141,850 2,201 160
555, Philhealth and Pag-ibig contributions 1,124 T62 1,081 103
Directors’ fees 634 ddd LTl
Retrement benafit cost 22 431,251 583431
FIEHSIEE? ™16 855 486
Qcoypancy gnd equipment-relafed
MNore 2022 2024
Depreciation and amortization 10,23 4,394 175 4 452 347
Rent 23 1,257 445 TT2x
Power, light and waber 705,755 G606 678
Sacurity and janitonal services G605 B84 614 058
Repairs and maintenance 284,285 44 ¥ 1TS
P7,257 554 6,032 827
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Miscelanenus expenses

Dz 201

Site survey and other axpenses PEE1, 061 8
Information and technology 527,012 234,813
Advertiging 269,400 224 851
Fines and penalties 244 795 270, T80
Supervisory fees 40,989 &7, Td1
Membership fees and duees 16,727 24,21
Oihers B25.375 AT
P2 604, 858 ™1 553 894

Site survey and other expenses pertain to expenses incumed o prepare the investmeant properties for appraisal.

Orther miscellaneous expenses comprise mostly of meal and communication allowance of account officers and
team leaders, and other bank's charges.

21.

Income Taxes

Under Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject to percentage and other taxes as well as income taxes.
Percentage and other taxes paid consist principally of gross receipts tax and documentary stamp taxes (DST).
Income tases include Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) and 20% final taxes paid, which is a final
withhobding tax on gross interest income from government securites and other deposit substitutes. Final taxes
padd by the Bank amounted to 76,694 and ™05.907 for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021,
respactivey.

Effective July 2008, RA No. 8504 was approved giving corporate taxpayers an option to claim demized
deduction of optional standard deduction equivalent bo 40% of gross income. Once the option is made, it shall
[ imervocable for the taxable year for which the option was made. The Bank opted to continue claiming itermized
deductions for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Current tax reguiations atao prowide for the ceiling on the amount of Entertainment. Amusemeant and Recreation
{EAR) expense that can be claimed as a deduction against taxable income. Under the regulations, EAR
expense allowed as a deductible expense for a sendce bank like the Bank is limited 1o the actual EAR peid or
imcurred bt not 1o excesd 1% of net income. EAR expense amounted to P76, 6594 and ®105,997 for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respeciively (see Moba 30).

The regulations stso provide for Mindmum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) of 1% in accordance with Corporate
Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises or “CREATE" Act on modified gross income and allow a MOLCO,
MCIT is recognized when it s higher than the RCIT. The MCIT and NOLCO may be appled against the Bank's
income tax liability and taxable income, respectively. for the three immediately succeeding taxable years. While
gy MOLCO incurred in 2022 and 2021 may be applied by the Bank for the five immediately succeeding taxable
WEErs.

Corporate Recovery and Tax incentives for Enterprises of "CREATE™ Act

On March 26, 2021, the President signed into law Republic Act Mo, 11534 or the CREATE Act. The law, which
became effective on April 11, 2021, introduces reforms to corporate income taxes and incentive systams in the
country by implementing certain changes 1o the current tax regulations.

The CREATE Act resulted to the reduction of the Bank’s tax rata from 30% to 25% (if Bank iz subject 1o MCIT,
from 2% 10 1% of grosa income for 3 years) effective July 1, 2020,

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council. in its Philippine Interpretations Commities O&A No.
2020-07, clarfied that the CREATE Act was not considered substantively enscled as of December 31, 2020,
despite that some of s provisions have retroactive effect. Accordingly, for financial reporting purposas, the
effect of changes in the income tax rates was recognized in the 2021 financial statements.
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The maje components of tax expense &s reporied in e staternents of income for the years ended
December 31 are as follow:

iz 202

Current tax expense PFT19,463 150,819
Dieferred tax benefit (583,287 -
P136. 176 150,819

The deferred tax benefit pertains to recognized recovery from unrecognized deferred tax assets on MCIT
wherein MCIT paid during 2019 is applied against the curment tax due of the Bank.

A reconciliation of the income 1ax expensse computed &t the stafutory income tax rate to the effective income
tax expensa shown in profit or koss is as follows:

D02 2024
Income (keas) before tax P2 568572 (5, 352 626)
Income tax at stabutory tax rate of 25% in 3022 and 2021 P42 143 (4,338 15T)
Adpust for tax effects of

in unrecognized defermed tax sasels (1.292,146) {103, 281)

Applied HOLCO 583,219 -
Mondeduchible expensas 61,074 &0 047
Interest income subject o final tax {dd, 310) (43, 600)
Change in tax rate on unrecognized defemed tax assels - 1220044
Expired MCIT - £48 557
Change in the effective tax rake - {80, 082)
Adjustrments/others 176,196 {70,599)
Income lax expense P136,1T6 150,819

The detalls of the Bank's MOLCO which can be claimed as a deduction from future taxabds income are &3
follows:

Year Incasrad Applied Expired Balance Expiry date

2020 2012520 (M2 012 520) [ " H2E

2021 3,775,758 {360.354) - 3,415,404 G
PS5 TEE27T8 (P2,372.874) P- 3,415,404

MOLCO refers o the excess of deductible expenses over gross income resuling to a loss position at & given
taxable year. Ordinanly, MOLCO shall be camed over as a special deduction from taxable income for the next
three (3} consecutive taxable years, immediately following the year of incurrence of such boas. However,
pursuant to Section 4 of Bayanihan o Recover s One Act a3 implemented under Revenuwe Regulstions (RR)
Mo 25-2020, any nat operating loss iscurred by the Bank for the taxable years 2020 and 2021, can be carried
owver as & special deduction from gress income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years following the year
of imcurrence such loss. Taxable years 2020 and 2021 shall include all those conporations with fiscal years
ending on or before June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 respeactively.

The details of the Bank's excess MCIT over RCIT which can be claimed as a tax credit against future RCIT
liabilities are &3 follows:

Year Excess MCIT
Incurred REIT MCIT  owver RCIT  Applied Explired Balance Expliry
2018 [ 583,257 P583.287 (583287 L P 2022
2020 - 240,278 240278 - - 240278 2023
2021 - 230,911 230,811 - - 230911 2024
B P#1,054476 #1,054.476 (P583,287) P Pa71,189
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Details of unrecognized defemad tax assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Effect of
change in
Deferrad tax Deferned tax assets tax rate Movements Total
Base Tax effect Movements Base Tax effect Movements
Allowance for impairment and ECL of
trade and other recefvables, and
investment properies #23,746,485 P5.936,621 PET2,81T  P20,255.214 5,063,804 (066, 657) 230,520 (PT36,137)
NOLCO 3,415,404 853,851 (593,219) £,788.278 1447 070 {100,626) 043,840 843,314
Excass MCIT over RCIT 471,188 471,189 (583.287) 1,054,476 1,054 476 (80,092) (315.646) (305,738)
Provision for retiremant benefits (143,586) (35,897) (464,085) 1,712,790 428,198 (56,659) 144,805 88,246
Actuarial gain {loss) on retirement
on (T02,383) (175,596) (402 ,605) 908,036 227 009 (45.402) (45.402)
PFRS 16 adjustment on leases (622, 686) (155 672) {121.757) (135 659) (33.915) 20,392 113,044 142,436
Met P26,164,423 P6.894496 (P1,292146) P20,583,135 8,186,642 (™,220,044)  ™1,116,763 (®103.281)

As discussed in Mote 3 to the financial statements, deferred tax asssets, if any, are reassessed at each financial raporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that futre tacabs incoms will allow the deferred tax assets to be utiized. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, management believes that the Bank will

niot have sufficient future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be applied, thus, deferred tax assets are not recognized.
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Movements in income tax payabde (prepaid tax) follow:

2022 20
Balance &5 at January 1 Pd3 157 #®i57,235
Charged to profit or koas 136176 150,819
Income tax paid (755,631) (284,887)
Balance &5 at December 31 (PSTE,298) 43,157

Retirement Banefits

As disclosed in Mote 3, the Bank does not have an established retirement plan and only conforms o the
minirmem regulatory benefit under RA Ko, 7641, Mormal retirement is at age 60. The Bank's latest actuarial
valuation report i3 as at and for the yesr ended December 31, 2020, The Bank used the projected finsncial
figures for year 2022, The actuary wsed projecied wnit credit method in determining the annual retirement
benefit cost and DBO. The valuation covers 45 amployees in 2022

The Bank is exposed to actuanal risks such as: irmeestment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary nsk.

frvestrmant risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan ksbility = calculated wsing & discount rate detsmined by reference
o gowvermment bomnds; if e retem on plan assst s balow this rate, itwill creste a plan defict

Interest rate risk
A decreass in the govemnment bond interest rate will increase the plan Eabiity; howsver, this will be partialhy
offset by an increase in the retun on the plan assets.

Longevily risk

The present valee of the defined benefit plan liability s calculsted by reference to the best estimate of the
martality of plan parBicipants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Ealary nsk
The present value of the defined benefit plan Mabiity s calculated by reference o the future salaries of plan
participants. As guch, an incresse in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The following data summarnize the results of the kstest sciusnisl valustion dunng the year:

(a) Defined benefit cost recognized in profit or koas follows (see Mote 20):

2022 20
Current senvice coat P2ZB3.0T4 458 209
Inberest coat 148177 125,112
Pa31 251 P 583 9

(b} Defined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive income as follows:
1 202
Due 1o changes in financial assumptions (P1,335,835) e
Due to expenence (58,Z23) -
Due to demographics assumptions 10,6448 -
{P1,383 410) "
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(c)

(d)

(&)

(fh

(3]

Changes in the present value of the DEO follow:

202 2021
Batance at January 1 #3.751,317 #3167, 396
Current service cost 283,074 458 049
Inkerest ooal 148 47T 125,112
Actuarial loss {1,383,410) .
Balsnce at December 31 P2 795 158 ®3.751,317
Changes in the fair market value of plan asaats follow:

2022 2021
Batance at January 1 P2,038,527 034 223
Contribations to plan assets 1,600,300 -
Interest income 6,287 4304
Balance at Dacember 31 #3645 124 #2,038.527
Wet retrement liability (aaset) as at December 31 follows:

202 2021
Presaent value of DBO P2 799,158 P3.751,317
Fair value of plan assets (3.645,124) (2,038 527)

(PE4S DEE) ®1_712,780

The currulative armownt of actuanial losses (gains), net of urrecognized deferred tex Gasets, are as
follows:

MNaote 202 2021
At January 1 PEE1.02T ™55 625
Actuanal loss, net of tax (1,383,410,) -
Effect of change in tax rate 18 = 45402
At December 31 (PT02,383) ma81,027

The key actuarial sssumplions wsed in the 2022 scieanial valustion are as follows:

Discount rabe 3.95% 5 0%

Salary increase rate 1.50% 2.00%
‘Withdrawal rates Age

18-24 T.50%

2520 &.00%

30-34 4.50%

a5.34 3.00%

A0-44 2.00%

=45 0.00%
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The discount rate assurmplion is based on the Philippine Dealing Exchange (PDEx) (PDST-R2) benchmark
market yields on gowernment bonds as of the valuation dates (or latest available) considering the average
years of remaining working life of the employeses a3 the estimated term of the bensfit obligation.

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by remeaswrning the DBO
&t the financial reporting date after first adjusting one of the cument sssumpbions according to the
applicable sensitivity incremant or decremant (based on changes in the relevant assumption that were
regsonably possible at the wvaluation date) while sl other assumpBons remained unchanged. The
sensitiviies were expressed as the comesponding change in the DEO.

It showld be noted that the changes assumed 1o be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open io
subjectivity, and do nof consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those asswemed
may be desmed to be more reasonsbls.

{h} The sensitivity of the DBO to changes in the principal actuaral assumptions, sssuming all other
Easumplions were held constant. as at Decamnber 31, 2022 follows:

Decreass in DBO dus to 100 basis points (bps) incresse in

discount rate (P2TE 4649) O .00%
Increase in DBO due to 100 bps decrease in discount rabe 320,372 11.80%
Incresse in DEO due to 100 bps iIncrease in salary increase rae 345,855 12.40%
Decrease in DBO due to 100 bps decrease in salary increase rate (205521} 10.60%
Incresss in DBO, no attrition rates 168,421 &.00%

{il Mabunty of the expectad future benefit payments as at December 31, 2031 follows:

Year 1 P
Year 2 -
Year 3 1,145,454
Wear 4 -
Year 5 -
Year 6-10 2 584 965

There are no unusual or significant risks o which the retirernent obligation exposes the Bank. However, it
should be noted that in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement cbligation, the bensfit shall
immedisiely be due and payable from the Bank.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment, o settement recognized for the years ended Decamber 31, 2022
and 2021. The weighted average duration of the DBO iz 10.9 years in 20E2.

Leases

Bank 85 5 Lesses

The Bank enterad into several lease agreements for the lease of cartain office premises and branch offices.
The lease obligations are subject to interest rates ranging from 7.21% to 7.27% per annum and are payable
monthdy for & pericd of one to five years.

The maburity analysis of contraciual undiscounted cash fiows:

2022 2029

Mot later than one year #2808 226 P2 745,330
LLater than one year but not later than five years 2,021,608 2 764,371
P4.830 835 P5.508, 71
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During 2021, the Bank, upon mubual sgreement with the lessor, has been granted a rent relief to one of ita
lease contracts in consderation of the COVID-19 pandemic. The said lease contract covers a pencd of five (5)
years commencing on Mowvemnber 15, 2018 untl Movember 2023 which may be renewed upon mutual
sgresment of the Bank and the lessor. Based on the agreed terms of the lease condract, the lease payments
s subject to ten percent (10%) escalation rate starting on the 3rd year and Sth year of the lease term In
conssderation of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank and the kessor agreed to defer the said escalation dus for
the third year. This is accounted for a3 8 lease modification due to decrease in lease payments resulting to the
sdjustment in the camying amount of lesse kabdities and profit or kess.

Sat out below are the carmnying amounts of lease kabiities and the movements during the yesr:

2022 2021
Aa at January 1 Pd, 039,405 P7T 378,064
Acoretion of interest T05, 700 407,231
Additions 3333829 -
Oiher income from bease modification (see Mote 18) - (663,058)
Payments (3,127,193 (3,083.731)
Az st December 31 Pd, 851,841 4,038,405

Sat out below are the carrying amounts of nght-of-use sssets and the movements during the year:

hiote 202 2021
Balance at January 1 P3.5903 Td46 PG, 01,126
Additions 3,138,776 -
Amortizaon 20 (2.714,367T) (2,887 ,380)
Balance at December 31 4328 155 P3.903 746

Ehorf-term leasss. Rent expense amounting o #1257 445 and ®FF2,229 in 2032 and 2021, respectively,
pertains to payments classified as shor-ierm leases (ses Mote 20).

Related Party Transactions and Balances
Significant related party ransactions and balances are summarnized below:
(g} DOSRI [Directors, officers, sharsholders and relsfed infereslz) loans

Under the Bank's policy, DOSRI ramnsactions, which generally corsist of loans and other commercial
transecbions, are made subatantially on the same erms &3 with other individuals and businesses of comparable
risks. Linder the Bank's DOSRI policy and carrent BSF regulations, the amowunt of any loan to OSSR, of which
7% must be secured, should not exceed the amount of their respective investment in the Bank. Such limit
does not apply o loans secured by sssets considered as non-risky as defined in the regulstions. In the
sgpgregate. kans to DOSRI showld not excead the Bank's total regulatory capitsl or 15% of its total loan
portiolio, whichever i kower.

The Bank adopts a bidding process to sell is propertes to the winning bidders and announces the properties
for sale through posting the list in the bank premises and those interesied buyer will send an emall or Letier of
Intent. In 2018, the Bank sodd one of its foreckosed properties 1o a shareholder for a selling price of BT 000,000
after soliciting offers o purchass from the public. The outstanding balance of the purchase price & P2 000,000
&5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021. The remaining balance will be settled upon transfer of the legal titk to the
buryer.

In 2018, another forecliosed property was sodd o & shareholder for & selling price of ™ 438 360, Tha
cutstanding balance as of Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021 s amounting to ™1,038.611. The remaining balance
will b= setiied by issuing bonds.
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In 2021, a foreclosed property from previously wiite-off loans with a selling price of #1,200,000 was initialhy
so0id o0 & third-party buyer. Downpayment was recefved from the third-party buyer in 2022 amounting 1o
500,000 but defawited on the remaining unpaid amount. Duwe io the default, the downpayment received by the
Bank was retumed o the third-party buyer and the property was sold 1o a shareholder for a selling price of
1,200,00. The outstanding balances a3 of December 31, 2022 amounted 1o PG500,000 which will be satie
upon ransier of tte of the property to the shareholder.

Key management personmnnsl compensabon

Key mansgement personnel are persons having authonty and responsibdity for planning, directing and
controding the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly, incheding any of is directors (whether executive or
othenstse)

Compersation received by key management personnel incledes all benefits constiuting sl forms of
consideration paid, peyvable or provided by the Bank, or on its behal, in exchange for sendces rendered to the
Bank_

Detaids of key mansgement personnel compensation follow:

2022 2024
Sheoirt-term emgﬁaa benafits F&?Hlnﬁ E?‘E!E@H

Financlal Risk Management and Objectives

The Bank, a5 a financial institution, i3 in the business of rsk taking. lis activities expose the Bank to credit,
market, bouidity and operational risks. Credit risk emanates from exposure io bormowing cusbomers,
counterparty risk in trading activities, and contingent credit risk anising from rade finance exposwres. Market
risk covers price, liquidity and interest rate risks in the Bank's investment portfolio. Liguidity risk may arise from
shoriage in funding andior lack of market for sale of iis assets. Operational risk covers poiential losses other
than market and credit risks ansing from failures of people. process, systems and inforrmation technodogy, and
extemnal events, including legal risk but exchudes repuiabional risk.

Although risks are inherent in the Bank's activiies, these are carefully managed throwgh a process of
identification, measurement. and monitoring subject to prudent limits and stringent conirols as established in
it= risk mansgement framework and governance strecture. The ability to mensge risks effectively is vital for the
Bank to sustain its growth and continue 1o create valee for its shareholders.

The BOD k= mainty responsible for te overall risk mansgement approach and for the approval of risk strategies,

principles, frameworks, policies and limits. it establishes & forum of discussion of the Bank's approsch 1o risk
im=wes in order 1o make relevant decisions.

FRegulatory framewaork
The operabon of the Bank is also subject to e regulatory requirements of the SEC, BSP, Philippine Depasit

Insurance Comporation (FDIC), Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) and local government. Such regulations mot
onhy prescrbe approval and monitonng of activiies but also impose certain restrctive provisions.

Finamcial risk management

The Bank neither actively engages in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it wiile
options. The most significant risks to which the Bank is exposed o are desoribed balow.

{g) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty fails to dischange an obligation o the Bank. The Bank is exposed o this
risk for vanows financial instruments, for examplde by granting loans and recedvable to customers, placing
deposits and investments.
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Credit risk management

The Bank drives credit risk mansgement fundamentally wia s credit policies, which are regularly reviewed and
updated io refiect changing risk conditions. The credit policies include the Bank's credit structure, tanget
markeis, credit evalugtion, sdministration and monitoring, and collection . Moreover, the Bank
conbinuowsly monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identfied eiher individweally or by group,
and incorporate this infomrmation into it credit sk controls. The Bank’s policy ks 1o deal onky with creditaorihy
counterparties. In addition, for & significant proportion of loans, collaterals are required to miligate cradit sk

The Bank's exposure o credit risk which arises from possible default of other counterparties with a macimuam
exposune equal io the cammying amounis of these instruments s eddressed by investing is excess funds with
various credibworthy universal and commercial banks.

The Bank manages limit and controls concentrations of credit sk whenever they are idenified, in particular,
o individual counterpanies and groups, ko industries and sovereign.

The Bank strectures the bevels of cradit risk it undenakes by placing lmits on the amount of nak sccepted in
relation to & bormower, or groups of borrowers, and o gecgraphical and industry segments. Such risk is
monitored on & regular basis and subject o an annual or mone freguent review, when considensd Nacessary_

Limits an large exposwne and credit concentration are approved by the BOD.

The exposure to credit risk iz also managed through regulsr analysis of the abdity of bomower and potential
boarowiars 1o meet interest and capital repayment obligations and changing these lending limits, where
appropriate.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. Some of these specific contrel and
mitigation measures are oullined below.

Codateral and crealt risk mibgafion fechnigues
One of the most traditional and common practices in mitigating credit risk i requiring security for leans. The

Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk mitigation. The
principal collateral type for loans is a morgage over real estate properties and chatiels.

kanagement monitors the market value of collateral, and requests for sdditional collatersl in accordance with
the underlying agreemsent and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during review of the adequacy
of the allowance for ECL. For unsecured lending, the Bank performs comprahensive credit evaleation process
before & loan i approved.

Impaimment and provisioning policies

The Bank's credit quality mapping on lcans is based on the standard BSP classifications. impaiment
proviskons, however, are recognized for financial reporting purposes only for losses thet have been incurred at
the regoning date based on objective evidence of impairment.

The Bank's maximem exposwure o credit nsk before collateral held or other credit enhancements (gross of
aliowance for ECL and uneammed discount) as at December 31 follows:

Naote 2022 20
Financlal assets at amortized cost

Due from BSP & P5 190,872 Paan 295
Dee from other banks 7 50,314 477 G4 067,073
Investmenis at amortized cost 8 1,445 THE 1,445 798
Loans and cther receivables g 186,296, 166 173,816,494
Drepoaits 12 B4E B8O 832 983
254,096, 201 P240.650,578




Excessive nsk concemralion

Cradit risk can arise whenever a significant number of borrowers have similar characteristics and are affected
similary by changes in economic or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Bank's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location. The Bank analyzes
the credit risk conceniration to &n individual borrower, related group of accounts, industry, geographic,
currency, tenm and security. To mitigate rsk concentration, the Bank constantly checks for breaches in
reguistory and internal limits. The Bank mensges credit risk through & continuing review of credit policies,
aystems and procedures. The Bank is not exposed to credit conceniration risk by geographic location n as
much as all of its credit custormers are situated acroas the Philippines.

The analyses of concentrations of credit risk by industry at the financial reporting date based on the camying
amount {gross of allowance for ECL and uneamed discount) are shown below:

20z
Db From Loans and Investmants
B3P and Othier &t Amorized
Other Banks  Receivables Cost  Deposits Todal
Wholesale and retail trade,
comstrucon, and personal and
household goods P-  P112,534, 648 P P P112.534,646
Financial inemmedianes 55,505,345 23,008, 358 1,445 798 . 79,960,505
Manufacturing - 14,615,387 . . 14,615,387
Feal sstale, renting and business
activities - 8,575,316 . B4 BBE 10,724,204
Agriculiure, hunbing and Toresiry - 12,164,404 . . 12,184,401
Holets and restauranis - 4,7IT 918 . . 4,727,916
Transporation, storage and
commLmecation - 540, BG4 . . 540,564
Other community, social and
personal service actvities - 18,831,278 . . 18,831,278
P55.505 349 P86, 296,166 p THE P48 BSE  P254 o
2021
D From Loans and Imvesbments
BSP and Other  al Amortized
iher Banks Receivables Cost Deposils Total
Wholesale and retail trade,
comstrucon, and pem:rnal S
heugsehiold goods ®.  PO0.505.275 [ P 00505275
Financial imemmedianes 64,455,208 19,168,651 1445 706 . 85,080,047
Maniufachuring - 15,850,104 . . 15,850,101
Feal eslale, ranﬂng and business
activities - 10,0822 E70 . 832 0B8 11,755,858
Agriculiure, hunbng and Toresiry - 8,713,540 . . 9,713,540
Hotets and restaurants - 5,304 290 . . 5,304, 200
Transporation, storage and
commLrecation - 119,824 . . 110,626
Other community, social and
pergonal sarvice actvilies - 13,224,641 . . 13,221,641
PE4 455208 P73 016484 P 44570 PR32 08E  P240.650,578
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The aging analyses of financial sssets (gross of allowance for ECL and uneamed discount) are as follows:

2022

Maither past
diwe nor Past due but not impaired

Total impaired 30 days  31.00 days 01.180 days > 180 day=___Impaired
Financial aggais al amardinad cosf

Due from BEP PE. 190872 PS, 190,872 P- P- B P P
Due fram other

banks 60,314 477 B0, 314 47T . . - . .
Loans and other

recevables 196,206 166 108331031 28,307,032 8,027,743 10,261 438 31,849 648 11,519274
D posite: B4B BEE A48 BAH . . - . N
Investments a1

armoriized

coat 1,445 788 1,448,798 . . - . .

P2E4, 096201  P166,131,066 P28307 032 PO.0ET,.743 P10,261,438 P31649 648 P11,518274

2021
Mailber past
dise nor Past dus bul nol impaired
Total impared 0 3190 5 91-1B0 days = 180 days Impainesd

Finncial assats al amardinad cosf
Due from BSP PIEE 235 T8 225 ) . [ . .
Due fram other

banks 84 067 073 684,067,073 . . . . .
Loans and other

recervables 173,816 454 B4 192823 52602 693 22647338 14770431 B90E 953 10,695 268
Deposits B2 QB& B32 988 . . . . .
Investments al

am ortized

coad 1,445 708 1,445 708 - . . . .

240,850,578  ™130,828 907 ™52 602,693 P32 647 3F8 P14,7704351 8 008,055 #0695 268

Creadit quaily per class of finsncial assefs

Due from BSP and other banks, Investrments and other assats — based on the nature of the counterparty and
internal rating system.

Certain loans are secwred by real estate.

The credit quality of the Bank's financial assets that are neither past dee nor impaired is considered o be of
good quality and expectad to be collectible without incurring any credit losses. Howewer, the Bank provides for
allowance for ECL not only on impaired accownts bat also on past due but not impaired and neither past due
mor impaired accounts based on s assessment of objective evidence of impairment and provisioning
guidedines of the BSP.

The description of koan grades used by the Bank is as follows:

= High grade and kow rish accounts are nekther past due nor impaired sccounts which are fully secured by
collateral and with good loan collection status. This category includes credit grades 1-3. High grade
acoounts are those which have a high probabdity of collection, &5 evidenced by counlerpariies having the
abdlity to mest their obligations and supporied by lien on collaterals that is ready enforceabls.

= Standard grade and medium sk sccownts are nedither past due nor impaired accounts and are partislly
secured. This category includes credit grades 4-5. The category includes keans for which collections are
probable due o the reputation and the financial ability to pay of the counterparty but have been culstanding
for considerable period of time.

= Substandard grade — accounts under watch kst These accounts warrant greater atienton duee to
conditions affecting the borrower, the industry, or the economic environment. The bomower IncuUrs a oss
of repayments routinely fall past due.




The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets (gross of allowance for ECL and uneamed
discount) &3 &t December 31:

2022
Melther Past Due nor impaired
High Standard Substandard
Grade Grade Grade Taotal
Financial assets af amorbized cosf
Due from BSP #5. 180,872 - P 5180872
Due from other banks 50,314 477 - - 50,314 477
Loans and other receivables 4, TEE, 569 13,360,158 204,304 108,331,031
Deposits 845,838 - - 848,888
Inwestments at amortized cost 1,445 798 - - 1,445 798
P52 566,604 P13.360,158 P204,304  P166.131,066
2021
Meither Past Due nor Impaired
High Standard Substandand
Grade Grade Grade Total
Financial assets af amorbized cosf
Due from BSP ®368,225 - - 388,225
Due from other banks 64,067,073 - - 64,067,073
Loans and other receivables 38,836 401 20,606,881 4 547 541 G4 182 833
Deposits 832 988 - - 832 988
Inwestments st amortized cost 1445 T8 - - 1. 445 798
®105,672 485 P20 606 881 P4 647 541 #130,926,907

With the level of allowance for ECL on loans and other recefvables, management believes that the Bank has

sufficient allowance bo mansge any risk from non-collection or non-collateral of the Bank's loans and other
recaivables.

{b) Market risk

The Bank's market sk exposure anses from adeerse movements in interest rates and prices of assets that
are either carmmed in the banking book or held a3 positions in the frading book (financial instrurments),
mismatches in the contractual maturity of its gasets and liabiliies, embedded optionally in the loans and deposit
due to pre-terminations, and potential cash run-off arising from changes in owerall liquidity and funding

conditions in the market. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank has not engaged in trading financial
instruments.

Market nisk related to the Bank's financiats includes interest rate, foreign cumrency and price risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate anses from the possibiity that changes in interest rates will affect future cash fiows or fair valees
of financial instruments. The Bank's interest rate exposwre onginates from s deposit taking, lending and
invesiment activities because the income derived from these activiies such as interest income and expense
are sensitive to changes in interest rates.

Interest rate risk managemeant comes in the forms of proper matching of asset and liability prodwcts in tarmms. of
tenor, yiebd and interast rate sensiivity.

The Bank follows & prudent policy on managing its rescurces and liabilities so a5 to ensure that exposure o
fluctuations in interest rates s kept within scceptable Bmits.
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The maturity profile of the Bank's interest-bearing financial instruments (gross of allewance for ECL and
wneanmed discount) fodows:

2022
Within 1 year =1 — & years = 5 yEErs Total
Financial assets
Diue from other banks 50,314 477 P - #50.314 477
Investrments &t amortized cost 1,445 T84 - - 1,445,798
Loans and other receivables B, 094 681 102,201,485 - 196,296,166
Financial Hability
Deposit kabilties 119,801,647 26,040,001 - 145,641,648
2021
Within 1 year >1 -5 years =5 years Total
Financial assets
Due from other banks e, 067 073 o P- Pa4d 067,073
Invesiments at amontized cost 1,445 To8 - - 1 445,798
Loans and ather recaivables O3 107 402 B0 508G, Dd - 173,816,494
Financial Nabifty
Deposit kabilities 125 641 247 23 600,002 - 149,241,249
The interast rates for the interest-bearing financial instruments are as follows:
2022
Within 1 year >1-5 years 25 years
Diue from other banks 0.125% - 0.625% - b
Immstments at amortized cost 2.10% - 2.65% - -
Loans and other recaivables 6% - dB% 1% - 48% -
Deposit iabilities S0% 1.50% to 7.50% -
2021
Within 1 year =1 - 5 years =5 years
Due from other banks 2% - 1.75%: )
Immstments at amortized cost 210% - 2.65% -
Loans and other recaivables 6.5%-4B% 12% - 48%
Deposit iabilities S0% A% - T 5%

Aa at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank is not sensitive 1o significant fluctuations in interest rates since
most of the financal instruments have fixed rates.

Foreign curmancy nsk

The Bank does not have financial assets and financial labiities a3 at December 31, 2022 and 2021 that are
denominated in foreign currency, hence, it is not exposed o foreign currency risk.

Price ns#

The Bank hes no exposure to market price risk since it has no trading portfolio arising from holding of
govermment and other debl securities a3 at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is generally defined as the cumrent and prospective risk to eamings or capital arising from the
Bank's inability to meet its obligations when they fall dus without incurring unaccapiable losses or costs.

The Bank's Managemeni Committee i responaible for the overall managemant and owersight of the Bank's
bguidity profile, while the day-to-day management of liquidity is assumed by the Treasury Department. A cash
flow mismatch analysis is used o measure the Bank's liquidity. A maturity profile is maintained to determing
the cumulative net excess or deficit of funds at appropriate ime bands. Met cumulative outfiow limits have been
put in place o ensure that the Bank's funding structure reguirements are not strained.
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The maturity grouping of financial instruments is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the financial
regarting period to the contractual maturity date. For financial Eabdities, when the counterparty has a cholce of
when the amount is to be paid. the liability is aliocated to the earliest period in which the Bank can be required

o pay.

The following tables summarize the maturity profile of financial instrements based on contractual wndiscounted
cash fiows (gross of allowance for ECL and unesamed discount) as at December 31:

2022
3 Months and > 3 Months to
Tolal Bixlcyrw 1Year >1105 Years > § Yaars
Financial agsets
Cash and other cash itema 4,979,648 P4 979,648 P P P
Due from BSP 5,180,872 5180672 . . -
Due from other banks 50,314, 477 50,314 47T - - -
Inwesimants 1,445, 798 1,445 798 . - -
Loans and other
receivailes 196, 286,166 41,600,013 52,494 B6E 102,201 485 -
Deposits B448 888 348,888 - . .
259075849 104,379,696 52,494,668 102,201,485 -
Financial Nabitities
Depogit labilities 145 841,648 98,182,582 21,618,685 26,040,001 -
Bills payabile 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - -
ACCounts payable and
other liabilithes® 7687114 7687114 - - -
Redeamable prefermed
ghares 3478800 3,478,800 . . .
162,007,562 108, 348,896 26,618,665 26,040,001 -
Net financial assels
i liabilities) Pa7,068,287  (P4.969,200) P25E7T6,003  PTE,161,4B4 P-
"Exciuting povemmant Vehitbes and miscailansous sabifies
2021
J Months and > 3 Months o
Taokal Balaw 1Year =1105Years > 5 YEars
Financial agsals
Cash and ather cash ilems 2 682,304 P2 6E2 304 - *. |
D Troem BSP 386,225 3E8 225 - - -
D frofm olhas banks 64 067,073 B4 0E7.073 - - -
Investrneants 1,445 758 1,445 798 - - -
Loans and ofher recaivables 173,916,454 50,113,264 42 a4 1368 B0,809, 082 -
Diher agsals 832 DRE 832 083 - - -
243 332,872 110,529,742 42 034 138 B0,800,082 -
Financial iabites
Deposit kabilities 148 241,249 71,380,688 54 260,581 23 600,002 -
Accourits payable and ofher
liabilities® 3.875,5B5 3,873,585 - - -
Redeemable preferred
ghanas 3. 476 BDD 3,478 200 - - -
156,695 634 76,835,071 54, 280 561 23,600,002 -
Met fnancial assels
[Eabilities) ™86 637,338 ™40,604 E71 {™11,266.423) ™&57,209,000 =

“Exciuging povemmeant abiites and misceilaneous Aabilfies




The table bebyw shows the acheal liquidity metrics of the Bank:

H0x2 20
Lewvarage ratio 31.69% 3%
Minirmam Bguidity ratio 34.83% 41%
Total expoaure measrne 248 700,511 P234 034 866

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that it complies with externally-imposed
capital requirements and that & maintaing strong credit ratings and heslthy capital ratios in order 1o support its
business and bo maximize shareholders” value.

The Bank manages s capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it in light of changes in economic conditions
amd the risk charsctenistics of its activiies. Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes of
the: Bank from previous years.

Requila I

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with reguiatory requirements and
ratios is based on the amownt of the Bank's “unimpaired capital® {reguistory net worth) for reporting to the BSP,
which iz determined on the basis of reguiatony accounting polickes which differ from PFRS: in some respects.

The BSP sets and monitors complisnce with minimum capital requirements by banks. in implementing curment
capital requirements, the BSP has issued Circular Mo, 538 which implemented the Revised Risk-Based Capital
Adequecy Framework under Basel || effective July 1, 2007. i requires the Bank to maintain a prescoibed risk-

based capital adequacy ratic (expressed a5 a percentage of qualifying capital to nsk weighted asssts) of not
bess than 10%.

Stand-alone thrift banks, neral banks and cooperative banks are covered by a separste nsk-based capital
adequacy framework refermed to by the BSP as the Basel 1.5 framework which s & simplified version of Basel
Il i wiew of the simple operations of these covered banks. The implementing guidelines of Basel 1.5 are
contained in Circular Mos. 688 and 740 datedMay 26, 2010 and November 16, 2011, respectively, which took
effect on January 1. 2012. Consaguently, the new nsk-based capital adequacy framework s used fo compute
the capital-to-risk assets raso (CAR).

The details of the Bank's CAR as reported o the BSP follow:

2022 2021

Tier 1 (Core) capital
Commaon shares F1e0,082, 208 ®153.556,108
Deficit 181.260.816) (F7.363 240)

TH821 282 76,192,868
Tier 2 (Supplementary) capdtal
Redeamable prefemed chares 3478, BOD 3478800
General Ioan koas provision 1443 882 520,362

48922 782 4,008,162

Total qualifying capitsl PR3, 744,074 P a0.201,030
Risk-wesghted assets B Z88.257, 390 P283.565,227
CAR 29.05% 28.28%

The Bank has excesdsd the minimum nsk-based capital sdequacy ratio, expressed as a percentage of
qualifying capital to risk-weighted asseta, of not less than 10% a8 required by the BSP; its CAR being 20.05%
and 28.28% as of Decarnber 31, 2022 and 2021, respectivaly.
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The details of the Bank's CAR as at Decamber 31 based on the audited financial staternents follow:

2023 2021
Tier 1 {Core) capital
Commaon shares 160,082,208 ™153.556,108
Deficit (81,723,393) (85,024,152}
TH.358 815 68.531.956
Tier 2 {Supplementary) capital
Redeasmable prefemed shares 3,478, B00 3478800
General loan loas provision 1443 882 520 352
4872 782 4 008,162
Total qualifying capital P83.281,587 PT2.540,118
Risk-weighted assels P288,287, 380 ®283 565 227
CAR 28.89% 25 58%
Tier 1 ratio 2T 18% 24 1%
CET 1 ratio 2T 18% 24 17%

The BSP, in its Circulsr 854 dated October 29, 2014 and effective on Movember 13, 2014, increased the
minirmem capital reguirement for 2l bank categories o ensure thet banks stand on a sirong capitsl base o
support & threshold scale of operations o operate wiably and service effectively the needs of clients. As
provided by the Circular, banks shall be allowed five years from the effectivity date to meet the required
minirmem capital requirements. Banks which are ot meating the minimwm capital must submit to e BSP an
acoeptable capital bawid-up program for this purpose within one year from the effectivity of the Circular. The
e minirmusm capitsl requirerment for the Bank i #5000 000

Failure to comply with the new minimum capital reguirement by November 18, 2019 may subject the Bank 1o
sppropriate actions andior may be imposed with sanctions by the BSP. In order to ensure that the Bank
constanthy complies with this requirement, the management has established a capital build wp plan (the *Plan®)
that was approved by the Board. According to the Plan, starting 2018 the Bank will increase marketing afforts
on the Microfinance and SME loan products to drive positive imcome. The Bank will also dosaly monitor past
due accounts 1o improve collection and continuous disposal of foreclosed assets. In cases where the capital s
not suffickent to meet the requirement. the Bank's shareholders have committed fo contribute additional capital
to cowver any deficiencies.

Bazed on the aforesaid information, the Bank's capital as at December 31, 302 meet the requirement abowve
of mew minimum capital requirement of #5000 000,
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Z7. Financlal Assets and Financial Liabllities

The table below presents comparison by categony of cammying amounts and fair valees of the Bank's financial

inatrements a3 st December 31:

2022 20
Carrying Carrying
Amnount Falr Value Anmount Fair Vahse
Financial assels at amortized cost
Cash and other cash fems P4 879,648 P4, 979,645 P2.682,304 =2 682 304
Dse from BSP 5 180,672 5,190,872 388 205 388, 225
Drse from othier banks 50,314,477 50,314,477 G4, 067 073 &4, 067 073
Loans and ather receivables, net 172, 9843 664 172,843,664 154 058 B48 154,056 848
Other asaeks” B4R, 888 8438 BEE B3Z 988 A32 ORR
Investments 1,445,798 1,445,798 1,445 708 1,445 788
235,723,347 235 723,347 223ATA32  FEIATIANG
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Deposit liabilises 145,841,648 145 841,648 140241240 149 241 249
Bills payabis 5,006,000 5,000,000 - -
Accounts payable and other liabilises ™ 7,687,114 7,687,114 4,968,105 4,965 105
Redesmable preferrad shares 3,478,600 3,478,800 3,478 BOD 3,473,800
162,007,562 162,007,562 157 680,154 157689154
Net financial assets PT3,715,785 P73 TIS5.TES P65 TH4 172 MBS TA4 172

“Including degosis and petly cash fund

“Exciuding govermymen! ishilfies and misceianaous Fabilties

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial lisbilities which are camed at amortized cost, are
sssumed o approximate their fair values due to their relatively short-term maturities andi'or their being subject

to an inssgnificant risk of changes in value.

MWone of the Bank's financial assets has been pledged &3 collateral for liabilites or contingent liabilites. The
Bank has no contingent liabilites ansing from off-balance sheet itarms a3 at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

28 Baslc Cuantitative Indicators of Financial Performance

The key financial performance indicators follow (in %):

2022 20
Return on average equity 326 {T.87})
Return on average assels 104 (2. 700
Met interest marngin on average interest eamings assets 8.28 14.93
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28, Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
Presented below is the supplementary information which s required by the BIR wunder its existing Revenue
Regulations (RR) to be disclosed as part of the notes to the financial staternents in addition to the disclosunes
mandated under PFRS.
RR NO. 15-2010

In compliance with the requirements of RR Mo, 152010 issued on November 25, 2010, hereunder are the
information on t=wes, duties and Bcense fees pald or accrued duning the taxable yesr ended
December 31, 30

{8} Withholding taxes

Expanded withivobding tax Pa82 735
‘Withhobding taxes on compensation and benefits 468 918
Final withhodding Eaxes on interast on deposits 280 376

B 233,029

(b} Documentary stamp taxes

Loan instrurments passed on o bomowers #1428 542

(c} Other taxes and licenses

Gross receipls tax P2 711,281
Capital gains tax #68 183
Municipad license and permit fees 158,323
Real property tax 118,028
Documentary stamp lax 83,761
BIR annual registration 1,500
Others &8 916

P4, 122992

(d} Deficlency tax assessments and tax cases

Aa al December 31, 2021, the Bank has no pending tigation and tax court cases and has not receved
any tax asssssment notices from the BIR.

RR NO. 34-2020

BIR issued RR Mo, 34-2030, Prescribing the Guidelines and Procedures for the Submission of BIR Form Mo.
1704, Transfer Pricing Documentation (TRD) and other Supporting Documeants, Amending for this Purposs the
Pertinant Provisions of RR Mos. 19-2020 and 21-2002, as amendsed by RR Mo, 15-2010, to streamline the
guidedines and procedures for the submission of BIR Form No. 1709, TPD and other supparting documents.
Section 2 of the RR enumersied the taxpayers required to file and submit the RPT Form. together with the
Aminiead Incorme Tex Retunm.

The Bank is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions prowided under
RR 34-2020 for the year ended Decamber 31, 2022
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30, Supplementary Information Required by the Bangke Sentral ng Pillpinas (BSP)
Presented bebow is the supplementary information required by the BSP wunder Section 174 (Appendix 55) of
the BSF Manusl of Regulations for Banks (MORE) to be disclosed as part of the financial statements based
on BSP Circular Mo, 1074, Amendments to Regquistions on Financial Auwalt of Banks.

a. Basic quantitative indicators of financial performance (see Mole 28)

i ] 2024
Rebum on sverage eguity 3.26% {T.87%)
Wet income (loss) after income tax 2,432 396 (5.503 445)
Awarage total equity 74,626,563 659,020 984
Retum on average sssels 1.01% {2.67%)
Met income (loss) after income tax 2,432 396 (5.503 445)
Average total assets 240,381,017 205,765,237
et interest mangin B.28% 14.83%
Net interest income 33,323,501 30,157,070
Average interast eaming assats 402,502 934 202,002,757
b. Description of capial instruments ewed (see Mote 17 and 18)
2022 2024
Mo. of Mo of
Amount shares Amount shares
Common shares at P00 par value
per share
Authorized 196,000,000 1,960 186 000,000 1,860,000
Subscribed
Balance a3 st January 1 #1538 434,100 1,584 341 153 834 000 1,536,340
lssued during the year 6,526,100 65,261 4,600,100 A,
Balance as at December 31 164 960,200 1,649,602 158,434,100 1,584,341
Subacniptions recelvable {4, B77.582) - {4877 S02) -
Pald-up capital P160.082, 208 1,649,602  P153 556,104 1,564,341
2022 and 2021

Armount Ho. of Shares

Preferred shares at #100 par value per share

Authorized 1. 000, D 40,000
|zaued and outstanding ™, 000, D00 40,000
Redermnption &t cost (521 300} {5,212}
At December 31 3,478,800 34,788
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C.

Significant credit exposures on boans to industryleconomic sactor (see Kote 9 and 25)

The BSP considers that concentration of credit exists wihen the total loan exposure to a particular induestry
of economic secior exceseds 30% of the total koan portfolic. The Bank has credit concentration on
wholesale and retail trede and sgriculture, and on wholesale and retail rade, constnection and personal
and household goods in 2022 and 2021, respectively. Banks are also required by the BSP to set saide at
least twenty-five percent (25%) of thedr total loanable funds for agriculure and agranan reform credit in
genersl, of which at least tan percent (10%) of the total lnanable funds shall be mede available for agrarian
reform beneficianes. Excess complisnce with the ten percent (10%) agrarian reform credit may be wed
o offeet & deficency, if any, in the fifteen percent (15%) other agricultural credit, in general, but mot vice
VErsa,

In 2022 and 2021, the Bank did mot meet the required minirmwm percentege for the agrarian reform credit,
since it complied only 6.97% and 6.27%, respectvely, of the total loanable funds made availsble for
mgransn raform beneficianies.

The information on the concentration of gross loans and advances to customers to indusiry as at
December 31 follows:

20k 20
Amount ) Amount %
‘Wholesale and retall trade,
constrection, and personal and
housshold goods P112,534, 646 &4 00,505,275 B4
Manufachming 14,615,387 8 15,850 101 10
Agriculture, hunting amnd forestry 12,161,401 T 4,713,540 G
Real eatate, renting and business
activities 8,875,316 [ 10,922 870 5
Hobets and restaurants 4, TIT 36 3 5,394 Z50 3
Education a4 - 84 -
Transporaton, storage and -
Commasnication 540, 864 - 119,826
Health and social work 1,304,392 1 143,874 -
Electnc, gas and waber 1 - 1 -
Oiher community, social and personal
service activitias 18,831,278 11 13,224 g1 9
P174, 581,285 1060 ™54 871 602 100

The Bank analyzes the credi risk conceniration to an individual borrower, related group of sccouwnis,
industry, geographic. currency, term and security. To mitigate nisk concantration, the Bank constanty
checks for breaches in regulatory and internal limits.

The BSP considers that loan concentration exists when the tal loan exposune to 8 parscular indusiry
excesds 30% of the total loan portfolio plus the outstanding interbank keans recefvable or 10% of Tier 1
capital.

Breakdown of loans (see Mole )

As fo securily

2002 20
Securad

Real estate morigage #118,984 380 Pad 681,535
Chattiel morgsge 32,389,314 34,067,805
151,383,694 125,650,340
Unsscurad 23 207,581 29,212 262
#174,551, 285 ®154 871,602




The amount and type of collateral reguired depend on the sssessment of the credit risk by the Bank.
Certain reqguirements regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and walugtion are implemented by
thie Bank_

Secured koans, which are collsteralized by real estate and chatiel morgages, have terms ranging from
bess than one year to 12 years in 2022 and 2021 with annueal interest rates ranging from 6% to 45% and
12% bo 429% in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Unsecured koans ane guarantesd by co-makers, who in the event of default will assume the loan balance.
These loars have temns of 1 month to 10 years with annual interest rates ranging from 6.5% fo 48% in
2022 and 20:21.

As fo maturity

Existing banking reguiations allow banks with no unbooked valustion resenes and capital adjustments o
exclude from non-performing classification those keans and advances classified as “Loss® in the latest
examination of the BSF which are fully coverad by allewance for ECL, provided, that the interest on said
boans shall not be accruad.

Under banking regulations in 2018, loans, investments, recefvables, or any financial asset shall be
considersd non-performing, even without any missed contractual payments, when i is considered
impaired under existing accounting standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in Mtigation, andfor there s
evidence that full repayment of principal and interest is unlikely without foreciosure of collateral, if amy. All
ather loans, even if not considered impaired, shall be considened non-performing if any principal andion
interest are unpaid for more than ninety (20) days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more
than ninety (90} days hawe been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreemant.

Microfinance and other amall loans with simdar credit charscteristics shall b2 considered non-performing
after contractual due date or after it has become past due.

Restructured loans shell be considered non-performing. However, If prior to restructuring., the boans were
categorized a5 performming, such dassification shall be retained.

The performing lcans of the Bank as at December 31 are as follows:

2022 2021
Industrial P&T.916, 180 P60 685,580
Commercial 59,316,125 61,362 541
Agranian refom and other agricutbural credit 11,320 867 9713494
her T03.038 701,821
#138,256 310 ®132 463 536

The NPLs of the Bank as at Decermber 31 ane as follows:
2022 204
Commercial 16,440,155 13,456 476
Industrial 14,072,826 8,851,233
Agranian refom and other agricutbural cradit 4,621,682 46
her 2 311
#35.334 875 P22 408 066

The MPLs of the Bank represent approximately 20% and 14% of the total loan portfolio as &t

December 31, 2022 and 3021, reapactively.

The NPLs that are fully covered by allewance for ECL. as required by BSP, amounted fo 8,231,804 and

5,408,014 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respactivaly.
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Restructured receivables by conrachesl maturity dates are anshyzed as follows:

2022 20

Due within 1 year P4 144 TG ®1 816,345
Due beyond 1 wesr but not beyond 5 years 10,243,037 11,600,957
P14,357 823 13417302

Restructured receivables eam annual interast rates ranging from 12% to 48% in 302 and 3021,

Banks which have no unbooked vaheation and capital sdestments &3 required by the BSF are authonzed
o exclude from non-performing classfication those koans and advances classified as “losa® in the latest
examination of the BSP which are fully coverad by allowance for ECL, prondded, that the interest on said
loans shall mot be accrued and that such loans shall also be deducted from the total keen portfolio for
purposes of computation.

Sea Mote 25 for the discloswre on maturity profile of loans and other recefvables as st December 31, 2022
amd 2021,

Information on redated party loans (see Mote 24)

MNome fo report.

Aggregate amount of secured labiliies and asseis pledged as securnity

MNome fo report.

- Nature and amownt of contingencies and commitments arising from off-badance sheet items, trensaction
related contingencies, short-term sel-bguidating trade-related contingencies ansing from the movement of
goods, sale and repurchase agreemenis not recognized in the belance sheet; interest and foreign
exchange-rate related items; and ofher commitments.

MNome fo report.
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